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F E E L  O S I M

To feel for something,

you have to first believe in it.

Building that belief is challenging.

Brand OSIM has done it.

What follows is a journey into

how Brand OSIM has grown

from a local brand to one that

is beginning to make

its presence felt globally.

We Dream, We Create, We Build : Feel OSIM
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PRODUCT ARE MADE IN THE FACTORY, BRANDS ARE MADE IN THE MIND.

dear FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, it is my privilege to present to you the Group’s annual report for the financial year ended

31 December 2002.

RESULTS

Due to strong OSIM brand management throughout the region, the Group continued with its consistent growth. Amidst economic

uncertainties in the region, we posted another all-round sterling performance. Group turnover increased by 43%, with strong

broad-based growth continuing in every key market. Group net profit grew by 28% to $17.1 million.

We believe our shareholders should share in the Group’s good performance. The Board has therefore recommended a final

dividend of 0.9 cents per share and a 1-for-4 bonus share issue. The full year gross dividend payout of 1.35 cents per share

represents an increase of 80% over the previous financial year. The bonus share issue will expand the capital base of the Group.

In 2002, we prospered under challenging conditions because we continued to focus on our core competencies of brand

management and niche marketing in executing our four-pronged growth strategy of (1) new products, (2) new outlets, (3) new

countries and (4) new business focuses.
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Numerous new innovative products were launched, the most notable of which is the OSIM iMedic Chair, the world’s first intelligent

massage chair. We are extremely encouraged by the positive market response to the OSIM iMedic Chair in Hong Kong, Singapore,

Taiwan and China.

We started year 2002 with 303 outlets, and ended it with 388. Our target for end 2003 remains at 500. During the year, the Group

expanded into Australia, Canada, Ireland and the United Kingdom. Hygiene Focus, our new business division first launched in

Singapore and Hong Kong in 2001, was introduced in Malaysia and Indonesia.

Our vision for OSIM is to be the global leader in healthy lifestyle products. Our goals for year 2008 remain unchanged: group

turnover of $1 billion with a global point-of-sales network of 1,000 outlets. This optimism is based on four key success factors:

brand management, niche marketing, critical mass and operational efficiency. Our key markets in the region provide us with the

necessary critical mass to run a profitable operation. The accumulated intellectual capital over the last 20 years has resulted

in a much more efficient operation. Brand management and niche marketing are at the core of our business, and I will elaborate

a little more on these two key success factors.

BRAND MANAGEMENT and NICHE MARKETING

The OSIM brand is about the power of positive thought. Our business is about a collective and consistent approach to building

a reputation. We promise value and quality in our products and services and strive to fulfil and deliver these promises in every

customer interface. Through active brand management, our customers have encountered many positive buying experiences,

which in turn strengthens our brand.

Niche marketing is undertaken in close co-operation with brand management. Here, we focus on creating an emotional appeal

and a desired lifestyle for our target consumers. We address needs by selling a perspective to create a "want". Niche marketing

also helps to differentiate OSIM’s concepts, products and services from those of our competitors.

10



STRIDING FORWARD

Our vision and our goals are clearly spelt out. We believe the foundation is now in place to sustain long-term growth. We are

now the No.1 brand in healthy lifestyle products in Singapore, Hong Kong, Malaysia and Taiwan. With close to 400 outlets and

operations in 18 countries with more to come, the Group is well positioned to benefit from growing consumer demand for healthy

lifestyle products.

In 2003, our four-pronged growth strategy will result in new innovative products, more outlets, geographical expansion and

further rollout of Focus divisions. Barring unforeseen circumstances, we expect group turnover and operating profits for the

current year to exceed those achieved in the previous financial year.

APPRECIATION

Goals are established to challenge our people, and strategies provide them with the roadmap to get there. As a team we have

done well. On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to express my sincere appreciation to each and every one of the

many dedicated and hardworking staff whose combined efforts have resulted in the Group’s superior performance in 2002.

I know you will continue to challenge your spirit to do your best in 2003.

In addition, I would also like to thank all our customers, bankers, business associates, suppliers and shareholders for their kind

support and encouragement of Brand OSIM.

DR RON SIM CHYE HOCK

CHAIRMAN and CEO

11



Brand OSIM grows stronger everyday. Its strength is built through the years by

collective and consistent delivery of its concepts, products and services to

promote a healthy lifestyle in every customer interaction.

MANAGING BRAND OSIM



BRAND VISION
and POSITIONING
OSIM’S VISION IS TO BE THE GLOBAL LEADER IN HEALTHY LIFESTYLE PRODUCTS.

OSIM’s brand vision is to be the global leader in healthy lifestyle products, bringing healthy lifestyle to our customers around

the world. Our consumers will think of us as the leading company which provides high product quality, understands the role of

well-being and actively promotes it. They will also think of us as having conveniently located point-of-sales outlets and unique

store concepts with an innovative range of healthy lifestyle products. Our brand related efforts will help us to achieve more than

two-thirds of our stated growth goals over the next three to five years.

At the end of 2002, our outlets in 18 countries offer OSIM products in dedicated OSIM outlets. These outlets present a unique

setting and experience for our customers. Each store has several areas where consumers can be educated on the different

aspects of health and well-being. This gives a holistic and integrated approach to healthy lifestyle.

Brand OSIM is positioned as a leading brand, leading in its category.

Disney = Family Fun Entertainment

Hallmark = Caring Shared

McDonald’s = Food and Fun

Nike = Performance

OSIM = Healthy Lifestyle

A leader brand is a brand that leads expectations, that leads people through an overloaded and complex future, and that leads

standards – not just at the level of product, service and creative quality, but increasingly at the level of values and proactive

social contribution.

International research firm, Gallup Organisation, has validated OSIM’s No.1 position in healthy lifestyle products in Singapore

and Taiwan, while AC Nielsen has confirmed OSIM’s No.1 position in healthy lifestyle category in Hong Kong and Malaysia.

BRAND MANAGEMENT TEAM

Facing page from left to right: Mr Lim Chong Kiat, Ms Tan Cheng Cheng, Ms Deserine Lim 13
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BUSINESS focuses…
OSIM PRODUCTS CARRY THE FUNDAMENTAL THEME OF HEALTH AND WELL-BEING. OUR BUSINESS CURRENTLY

COMES UNDER FOUR COMPLEMENTARY FOCUSES – HEALTH, HYGIENE, NUTRITION AND FITNESS. TOGETHER, THESE

FOCUSES REFLECT OSIM’S HOLISTIC AND INTEGRATED APPROACH TO HEALTHY LIFESTYLE.

Health Focus is about helping you to make the right choices and managing a healthy lifestyle. This is OSIM’s first and largest

business focus. It sells a wide range of healthy lifestyle products such as foot reflexology rollers, pulse massagers, warm air

handheld massagers, blood pressure monitors and massage chairs - including the iMedic, the world’s first intelligent massage

chair that understands your body needs. Health Focus is represented in all of OSIM’s global point-of-sales network.

Hygiene Focus is about clean air, clean water and clean environment for your home and office. Officially launched in 2001, this

focus division promotes home cleaning and filtration systems. Products range from Mermaid, a water-based vacuum cleaning

system to Hydrofresh, a water purifier that produces pure drinking water from the tap. Hygiene Focus is present in Singapore,

Hong Kong, Malaysia, Indonesia and will be launched in China and Taiwan this year.

Nutrition Focus is about supplementing your daily nutritional needs for a balance diet. OSIM has a diverse range of vitamins,

food minerals and supplements to complement and cater to different lifestyles. These supplements come under categories such

as Beauty Formula, Children’s Health and Sports Nutrition. We are currently developing Nutrition Focus in Singapore.

Fitness Focus is about bringing the convenience of fitness to the comfort of your home. Some of these home gym equipment

include Maxi Runner, a foldable treadmill and Cardio Bike Recumbent. We are currently incubating Fitness Focus in Singapore.

Facing page: Ms Deserine Lim (Brand Management Team)
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The world’s first massage chair that
understands your body’s needs.

MASSAGE

HEALTHCARE OSIM iMedic



INNOVATOR and
IP DEVELOPER
OSIM USES INNOVATIVE SELLING APPROACHES AND CONSTANTLY ENHANCES ITS INNOVATION CAPABILITIES TO

PRODUCE SUCCESSFUL PRODUCTS WITH SUPERIOR DESIGNS, FEATURES AND QUALITY. AS AN INTELLECTUAL

PROPERTY (IP) DEVELOPER, OSIM CONTROLS ITS BRANDS, DESIGNS, TECHNOLOGIES AND CONCEPTS.

OSIM’s advertising and promotional activities are key to driving brand and product awareness, as well as creating a desire to

acquire the product. Through our campaigns, we have raised interests and stimulated consumer trials.

During the year, we have successfully introduced new innovative products which have not only reinforced the brand loyalty of

existing customers but have also secured new customers. The iMedic chair, the world’s first intelligent massage chair, represented

a breakthrough in massage chair technology and registered strong sales in Singapore, Hong Kong, Taiwan and China.

As an IP developer, we control our brands, designs, technologies and concepts. The “OSIM” trademark is registered in over 30

countries spanning Asia, Australia, Europe, North and South America and South Africa, with pending applications in several

others. Our research & product development people work with outsourced manufacturers to focus on continuous product

innovation, and to come up with better designs and technologies.

Our retail outlet concept is congruous with Brand OSIM, and this reinforces consumer perceptions. Through our point-of-sales

network, we can dictate what products to sell and how they should be sold. This way, we can better plan and co-ordinate the

timing of new product launches, enabling us to cater to the fast changing cyclical business environment.
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our
PEOPLE
OUR PHILOSOPHY IS “CHALLENGING YOUR SPIRIT TO DO YOUR BEST”.

OUR IMMEDIATE GOAL IS “HAPPY STAFF, HAPPY CUSTOMER”.

For us, branding is a sincere effort in building a reputation, with a promise of value and quality in our products and services.

It is more than having a celebrity, a popular logo or a well-known name. We have to strive to consistently fulfil and deliver these

attributes of Brand OSIM to our consumers.

We believe people comprise the most important component of our intellectual capital. They play a significant role in educating

customers about their health and well-being. With customers typically having little product knowledge, the need to carefully

explain the importance of well-being and highlight salient product features and benefits can contribute to an evolutionary change

in consumer attitude. We want to cultivate a complete and positive attitude and outlook towards life and living.

Teamworking, leadership and professional development programmes are organised to ensure our people are regularly trained

and equipped to meet the constantly changing world. We constantly challenge our people to do their best.

OSIM believes that a happy, self-motivated, self-disciplined and unified workforce will produce positive results and also attract

creative people with the right attitude and motivation. Our immediate goal is “Happy Staff, Happy Customer”.

27
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Facing page from left to right: Dr Ron Sim Chye Hock (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer), Mr Peter Lee Hwai Kiat (Chief Financial Officer),

Mr Richard Leow Lian Soon (Chief Operating Officer, North Asia), Mr Charlie Teo Chay Lee (Chief Operating Officer, HQ & South Asia),

Mr Tan Kia Tong (Chief Technology Officer), Mr See Toh Chee Wai (Chief Information Officer)
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CUSTOMER relations
OUR MISSION IS BRINGING HEALTHY LIFESTYLE TO YOU.

WE ARE COMMITTED TO EXCEEDING OUR CUSTOMERS’ EXPECTATIONS.

Our Brand is about the power of positive thought. We believe that good health starts with the right attitude. The emphasis on

a healthy lifestyle is increasingly relevant as the demands of modern lifestyle cause many people to overlook their well-being.

Our Mission is bringing healthy lifestyle to our customers.

OSIM was founded in 1980 and was a retailer of household products. Through the years, we have developed a holistic, convenient,

relaxing and inspirational approach to healthy living.

Today, we have a comprehensive range of products which helps our customers live a healthier life by soothing and inspiring

their mind, body and soul. These include massage chairs, foot reflexology rollers, handheld massagers, pulse massagers, blood

pressure monitors, relaxation music, water-based cleaner systems, water purifiers, treadmills, bicycles and food supplements.

We strive to project our brand as positive, confident, open, fresh, relaxed, balanced, intelligent and contemporary. Our customers

value reliability, quality products and services and a balanced outlook on life. We are committed to exceeding our customers’

expectations.

BEST SHOP 2002 AND BEST MARKETING 2002: HONG KONG

Facing page from left to right: Mr John Cheong (Division Manager, Health Focus, OSIM Hong Kong), Ms Jenny Yip (Marketing Manager, OSIM Hong Kong)
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COMMUNITY relations
WE BELIEVE IN CULTIVATING A POSITIVE ATTITUDE TO LIFE THROUGH PROACTIVE PARTICIPATION IN

HEALTHY LIVING ACTIVITIES.

OSIM has been actively participating and supporting healthy living campaigns in our key markets of Singapore, Hong Kong,

Taiwan, Malaysia and China. This is in line with our commitment to cultivate a positive attitude towards healthy lifestyle.

In January 2002, we adopted the Children’s Cancer Foundation (CCF) over a four-year period. In addition to pledging a total of

S$100,000 in cash, we worked closely with CCF to support selected projects and programmes aimed at improving the quality

of life of affected children and their families.

In October 2002, we sponsored the OSIM Singapore International Triathlon and actively participated in the event. Including funds

collected from Gong Li’s gala dinner, an additional S$74,000 was raised for CCF.

During the year, we were awarded the 2002 Arts Supporter Award, which recognised our contribution to promotion and organisation

of artistic activities.

Regular health seminars were also conducted for our customers and the general public during the year. Some of these were

organised together with the National Healthcare Group.

Facing page: Selected pictures from OSIM Singapore International Triathlon
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VALUING BRAND OSIM
OSIM products offer more. They evoke confidence, openness, freshness,

intelligence, relaxation and modern living that make it the leading brand in

the minds of the consumers.



brand VALUATION
STRONG BRANDS ARE VALUABLE BECAUSE THEY ARE CAPABLE OF SECURING SIGNIFICANTLY LARGE REVENUE

STREAMS OVER TIME

Brands play a significant role in securing revenues through their appealing images, heritage, reputation for quality products and

services and so on. They typically enjoy significant advantage over competitors through price premiums and loyal customers.

Their relative strength is such that we can be confident they can continue to secure significant revenue streams in the future.

Our focus on educating our customers in adopting healthy lifesytle in our key markets of Singapore, Hong Kong, Taiwan, Malaysia

and China has helped us to attain a category leadership role.

Together with superior product quality, an innovative range of products and an attractive set of conveniently located outlets,

we are able to anticipate and exceed our customers’ wants.

Our consistent investment in brand communications has also contributed to building category, brand and product awareness

throughout the region.
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brand STRENGTH
OSIM IS AN INTERNATIONAL BRAND, LEADING ITS CATEGORY.

OSIM is the No.1 brand in healthy lifestyle products in Singapore, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Malaysia. It appeals to a large

base of niche customers with its brand proposition which is built around a holistic approach to healthy lifestyle.

We are the market leader in each of the key markets we operate. We are targeting a long term growth trend of 20% to 30% per

year. This will further enable us to strengthen our position in the market by securing better economies of scale.

We have been effective in generating significant consumer pull and our brand investment is consistent. During the year, we

introduced international movie star Ms Gong Li as the new face of OSIM. She will play an important role in our continuing

marketing and branding activities in the region, especially in China.

Our geographical influence is increasing rapidly. Beyond our five key markets, we operate in 13 other countries. These are

Australia, Canada, Indonesia, Ireland, South Korea, Kuwait, Thailand, Philippines, Saudi Arabia, South Africa, United Arab

Emirates, United Kingdom and United States of America.

The OSIM brand is registered and protected in over 30 countries around the world.

Facing page: Mr Richard Leow Lian Soon (Director & Chief Operating Officer, North Asia)
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KEY markets
DUE T O STRONG OSIM BRAND MANAGEMENT THROUGHOUT THE REGION, WE CONTINUE T O GROW CONSISTENTLY

AT SUSTAINABLE RATES IN ALL OUR KEY MARKETS.

Hong Kong

Taiwan

Singapore

Malaysia

China

Turnover

(12 months to Dec 02)

$95.6m

$46.7m

$38.4m

$27.9m

$19.9m

% of total

40%

20%

16%

12%

8%

% change over

previous period

+28%

+62%

+40%

+75%

+72

SINGAPORE

Turnover grew a strong 40%, having benefited from new product launches and additional outlets. In the first half, the Genie,

Warm Air Handheld Massager and the iMedic Chair were successfully introduced. The market reception to the new iMedic

Chair exceeded expectations. In July, foot reflexology rollers were launched with strong advertising and promotional support,

producing impressive results. The Mermaid and iMedic Chair continued to sell well in the second half of the year.

Together with foot reflexology rollers and warm air handheld massagers, these products were the key revenue contributors to

Singapore turnover.

Franchisees

Total

39BEST COUNTRY 2002: MALAYSIA

Facing page: Mr Tay Sim Kim (Director and Chief Executive Officer, OSIM Malaysia)

Turnover Breakdown By Country

$10.7m

$239.2m

4%

100%

+20%

+43%



15 new outlets were added during the year, taking the total to 73. Health Focus constitutes the bulk, with 48 outlets, followed

by 16 outlets for Hygiene Focus. During the year, Nutrition Focus and Fitness Focus were launched. The two new Focuses will

be incubated and developed in Singapore before rolling them out to the rest of the global point-of-sales network. At year end,

there were four Nutrition Focus outlets and five Fitness Focus outlets.

Hong Kong

With 40% of group turnover, Hong Kong remained the largest market. In spite of a weak retail market, we relied on our brand

strength to grow turnover by a respectable 28%. Numerous new products were introduced during the year. The Mermaid and

iMedic Chair, both launched in March, were well-received by the market. During the second half, foot reflexology rollers and

the Genie came on the market. The iMedic Chair, eReflexologist, Pro-Therapist and the Mermaid all recorded strong sales

in 2002.

The Group continued to successfully build on its No. 1 brand position in healthy lifestyle products and its strong network of

point-of-sales outlets. 11 new outlets were added during the year, taking the total to 66 at year end. Health Focus accounted

for 50 outlets, with the remaining being 14 Hygiene Focus outlets and two Fitness Focus outlets.

Taiwan

Taiwan operations recovered well from severe typhoon-related floods in the second half of 2001. Concerted management efforts

to quickly recover lost ground contributed to the strong 62% growth in turnover. The launch of the iMedic Chair in June 2002

was well-received by consumers. This launch also benefited from the peak trading period in July and August. Other key products

that contributed substantially to turnover include the foot reflexology rollers and warm air handheld massagers.

Three new Health Focus outlets were added during the year, bringing the total to 45. In 2002, Gallup Organisation, an international

research firm, validated OSIM as the No.1 Brand in healthy lifestyle products in Taiwan.
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Malaysia

Malaysia is a relatively new market with good growth potential. This is reflected in the strong 75% growth in turnover in 2002.

Highly successful products that were launched in 2002 include foot reflexology rollers, the New Millennium Chairs and Pro-

Therapists. Under Hygiene Focus, the Mermaid was launched in February, and the first Hygiene Focus outlet was opened in

Subang Parade. The iMedic Chair is scheduled to be launched in Malaysia in early 2003, and we expect a strong positive response

from the market.

An active campaign to expand the Malaysian point-of-sales network resulted in 16 new outlets, taking the total to 57 at year

end. The Group will continue to focus on opening new outlets in suitable locations to tap the growth potential of this vibrant

market. Research conducted by ACNielsen in 2002 confirmed OSIM’s No. 1 Brand position in healthy lifestyle products

in Malaysia.

China

With a turnover growth of 72%, China accounted for 8% of group turnover in 2002. Growth in the first half benefited from the

sales of the New Millennium Chair. The iMedic Chair was soft launched in Beijing in September and was followed by an official

launch in Shanghai and Guangzhou towards the end of the year. Sales of iMedic Chair were encouraging, and the continuous

growth in turnover reflects the growing recognition of the OSIM brand in China. Handheld massagers and foot reflexology rollers

also contributed to the strong sales.

To capitalise on the growth potential of this market, 24 new Health Focus outlets were added during the year, taking the total

to 88 outlets at end 2002. The Group has been developing its point-of-sales infrastructure and marketing expertise in China for

the last 10 years, and is well positioned to benefit from China’s growing consumer market. China’s market driven economy has

given rise to about 30 cities that are ready for OSIM, with some of these cities having the market potential of Hong Kong.

The Group will continue deploying more advertising and marketing resources to develop the Chinese market. OSIM’s new celebrity

face, the internationally renowned Ms Gong Li, will be an integral part of the Group’s marketing and branding focus in China

over the next few years.
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Franchisees

In 2002, Singapore exported 20% more OSIM products to existing and new franchisees. During the second half, franchisees in

the UK, Canada, Ireland and Australia opened new outlets and contributed to the expansion of 16 new outlets in the OSIM

franchisee point-of-sales network, which totalled 59 at end 2002.

Four new franchisees were signed during 2002 – South Africa, Philippines, Saudi Arabia and South Korea, and they can be

expected to open their first outlets in 2003.

Awards and Standings

We were glad to receive two significant awards during the year.

The first award was the inaugural Singapore Brand Award 2002.  This is an national award recognising Singapore-listed companies

with the highest brand values. Organised by IE Singapore, the award is conferred on the basis of a valuation study conducted

by Interbrand, the world’s leading brand consultancy.

In terms of brand strength, OSIM was placed among the top five brands in Singapore. According to the study, OSIM has

established itself as a lifestyle brand that takes a holistic and positive approach to health, thus differentiating itself in an industry

dominated by product brands.

On an annual basis, based on the strength of profitability, earnings and sales growth, Forbes Global magazine assembles a list

of the world’s 200 best small companies. Of the 20,000 companies outside the U.S. with US$1 billion or less in revenue, only

1% of them make the grade.  In October 2002, OSIM was selected as one of the “200 Best Under a Billion” companies outside

the U.S.

POSITIONING FOR CHINA

Facing page: Dr Ron Sim Chye Hock (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer), Ms Gong Li (OSIM’s New Celebrity Face)
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GROWING BRAND OSIM
Feel OSIM as it reaches out to more people around the world, making their lives

more enjoyable and fulfilling.



brand EXTENSION
BRANDING IS A CORE THAT ONE CAN LEVERAGE AND TRANSCEND ACROSS

ALL CATEGORIES, INDUSTRIES AND COUNTRIES.

OSIM is an innovation-driven company that has established an extensive point-of-sales network of close to 400 outlets, spanning

18 countries in several continents.

Our development reflects consumer trend towards increased awareness of the importance of healthy lifestyle and well-being.

Our track record is largely because of the brand.

We support our brand not only through advertising, but also through educating our staff to deliver knowledgeable service.

Because of our holistic and positive approach, we have been able to credibly cross-sell a variety of products and expand our

scope to cater to market needs.

In 2001, we announced the natural extension of Health Focus division to Hygiene Focus, Nutrition Focus and Fitness Focus

divisions. Going forward, we believe we can leverage on the strong OSIM brand to transcend across more categories, more

industries and more countries.
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four-pronged
GROWTH STRATEGY
WE WILL CONTINUE TO FOCUS ON OUR CORE COMPETENCIES OF BRAND MANAGEMENT AND NICHE MARKETING IN

EXECUTING OUR FOUR-PRONGED GROWTH STRATEGY OF:

(1) NEW PRODUCTS (2) NEW OUTLETS (3) NEW COUNTRIES (4) NEW BUSINESS FOCUSES

New Products

In 2002, we introduced several innovative and superior products with overwhelming response. The world’s first intelligent massage

chair, iMedic, the water-based vacuum system, Mermaid and the foot reflexology roller, eReflexologist, were all well- received

by our customers. We have an active pipeline of new products and our research and development will continue to innovate and

delight our customers with more new features, designs and technologies.

New Outlets

Our target is to have 500 outlets by 2003 and 1000 by 2008. We will work towards our target by expanding in our key markets

and at the same time seeking more franchise opportunities around the world.

New Countries

We will leverage on our strong brand equity in Asia to expand globally. Our international presence has increased from 14 countries

to 18 countries in 2002. Joining our network are our new franchisees from South Africa, Philippines, Saudi Arabia and

South Korea. We expect more countries and cities to join our global network.

New Business Focuses

We have four focus divisions: Health Focus, Hygiene Focus, Nutrition Focus and Fitness Focus. We will expand these focus

divisions in existing and new markets. At the same time, we are looking at opportunities to further extend into more new business

focuses that are in line with our core healthy lifestyle business.

FRANCHISEES Facing page, front row from left to right: Mr JV L Borromeo (Phil ippines), Mr Brent Chen (Taiwan), Mr Ahmad Alwadi (Saudi Arabia),

Mr Boyz Lim (Assistant Franchise Manager), Ms Maria Mok (Hong Kong), Mr Maxie Tay (USA) 2nd row, from left to right: Mr Harry Cheigh (South Korea),

Mr Mohamad A Hafiz (Saudi Arabia), Mr Alan Lim (Thailand), Mr Alan Berrington (Ireland), Mr Chandra Makmuri (Indonesia), Mr Roy Tan (Assistant Franchise

Manager) 3rd row, from left to right: Mr Steve Murphy (South Africa), Mr Ron Steinke (Canada), Mr Wang Bangzhi (China), Mr Brandon Low (Australia),

Mr Tay Sim Kim (Malaysia), Mr Francis Leow (Franchise Manager) 4th row, from left to right: Mr Geoff Hunter (UAE), Mr Lewis Robinson (UK), Mr Low Hai Jen

(Australia), Mr Eric Kuan (Franchise Manager)
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OUR GROWING
FRANCHISE NETWORK
The country flags of our five key markets and 13 franchisees.

Top, from left to right: Singapore, Hong Kong, Taiwan, China, Malaysia, Australia, Canada,
Indonesia and Ireland. Bottom, from left to right: South Korea, Kuwait, Thailand, Philippines,
Saudi Arabia, United Arab Emirates, South Africa, United Kingdom and United States Of America…



FRANCHISE network
AT END OF 2002, WE HAD CLOSE TO 400 OUTLETS IN 18 COUNTRIES IN OUR GLOBAL POINT-OF-SALES NETWORK.

FRANCHISING ENABLES US TO SHARE OUR BRANDS, CONCEPTS, PRODUCTS AND SERVICES AND TAP INTO THE

MARKET KNOWLEDGE & NETWORK OF OUR FRANCHISEES.

IMAGINE GROWING BRAND OSIM AS WE WORK TOWARDS OUR GOAL OF 1,000 OUTLETS BY 2008.

Franchising is a business system whereby the owner of a well-established brand, product, service or concept grants rights to

a franchisee to conduct business in a prescribed manner over an agreed period of time in specified place or territory.

The OSIM franchise development started in early 1990’s. In 1999, we recruited our first independent franchisee from the United

Arab Emirates. Since then, our franchise network has grown to 13 independent franchisees besides our five key markets.

Franchising gives us the opportunity to learn from our franchisees about the unique operating conditions of each new market.

At the same time, our franchisees leverage on our brands, concepts, products and services to build market share. This has

helped all parties to learn and grow together faster.

During the year, our franchisees from Australia, Canada, Ireland and United Kingdom opened their first outlets. Our 59 franchisee

outlets contributed 4% to our total sales.

Imagine the strength of Brand OSIM as we expand our global footprint around the world.
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OSIM.
BIZ
GLOBAL BRAND ….. LOCAL CONTENT.

OSIM.BIZ ENABLES ANYONE TO REACH US ANYTIME, ANYWHERE.

A sound information technology (IT) infrastructure helps us to rationalise and streamline our business operations. This will assist

in shortening lead time, managing inventory and steering our supply-side activities to a cost-effective demand driven one.

During the year, we completed the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) implementation in Singapore, Taiwan and Shanghai.

To enhance our IT system, we will introduce ERP to Hong Kong, Malaysia and other parts of China this year.

OSIM.biz is our online initiative to enable anyone to reach us anytime, anywhere. This is our global website. The public can

assess the site for corporate information, press releases, employment opportunities and financial highlights.

At the same time, our customers can shop online for their favourite OSIM products. They can also get local information based

on where they are staying.

Moving forward, we will be upgrading our IT system to enhance its customer relationship management capabilities to provide

more service features to serve our customers even better.
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FUTURE plans
WE BELIEVE IN PUSHING AHEAD WITH DEVELOPMENT EVEN DURING AN ECONOMIC SLOWDOWN. IN FACT, IT IS ONE

OF THE BEST TIMES TO INCREASE SPENDING AND FURTHER BUILD AND CREATE VALUE. WHEN THE MARKET BOOMS

- THAT’S THE TIME TO HARVEST YOUR CROPS.

Our belief that “Health is an attitude to life” is more than a corporate direction. It is a way of life. When customers buy our

products, they are buying quality, with the assurance of reliability and trust. Branding is paramount. It creates the value and

the distinctive difference from others.

From a commercial standpoint, it certainly has to be projected and delivered in terms of customers being satisfied with the value

and quality of our products. From a financial standpoint, it means better customer satisfaction, leading to better sales and better

bottom line.

Going into the future, we will continue to add more value for our shareholders. We will continue to work towards enhancing our

products, services and concepts. The target is clear: 1,000 outlets by 2008. The strategy to grow has also been articulated:

(1) New Products (2) New Outlets (3) New Countries and (4) New Business Focuses.

Our philosophy is “Challenging your spirit to do your best”. This spirit is more than just about winning. OSIM people will do their

best and to find the necessary way to do it - to be resourceful without resources. The road ahead is long and challenging, and

we have to stretch ourselves to reach our goal. We are our greatest competitors. We must therefore continue to focus on and

develop the right people.

The future is not pre-defined. It is self-defined and re-defined.

We Dream, We Create, We Build : Feel OSIM.

Facing page: Dr Ron Sim Chye Hock (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) 53



FINANCIAL highlights
Our target is to grow annually at 27% to reach S$1 billion in group turnover by 2008.

Summarised Profit and Loss Account

       Proforma

Year ended 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000

Turnover 31,432 42,897 60,837 69,747 103,138 135,557 167,727 239,162

Operating profit 2,998 5,197 4,949 6,058 16,041 15,580 19,742 37,251

Profit before tax 1,632 3,668 4,402 3,199 10,848 13,765 16,232 22,491

Net profit after tax 1,042 4,189 3,330 2,259 7,441 9,442 13,395 17,145

Analysis:  
Turnover growth 36%   42%  15%    48%    31%    24%    43%
Operating profit growth 73%    (5%)  22%  165%    (3%)    27%    89%
Net profit growth 302%  (21%) (32%)  229%    27%    42%    28%
Operating profit margin 9.5% 12.1% 8.1% 8.7% 15.6% 11.5% 11.6% 15.6%
Profit before tax margin 5.2%  8.6%   7.2% 4.6% 10.5% 10.2%   9.7% 9.4%
Net profit margin 3.3%  9.8%   5.5% 3.2%   7.2%   7.0%   8.0% 7.2%
Earnings per share (cents) 0.6 1.3   1.8  1.3 4.1 4.1 5.8 5.8

Turnover

• Consistent growth due to strong OSIM brand
management throughout the region.

• Group turnover up 43%, broad-based double
digit percentage growth in every key markets.

• Group turnover target of S$1 billion by 2008.
To achieve this, OSIM has to grow FY2002
turnover by 27%  annually.

Earnings

• Group operating profit up 89%, a group record
- due to new product launches, better
operating efficiencies and economies of scale
from higher turnover.

• Group net profit grew by 28%, as this was
moderated by an exceptional items and higher
HQ related costs.

• The bulk of the exceptional items were due
to provision for impairment in value of certain
properties in the Group.
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TURNOVER (S$’000) CAGR 34%
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FINANCIAL highlights
Summarised Balance Sheet

Proforma

Year Ended (S$'000) 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

Shareholders' equity 6,417 10,186 13,007 14,937 10,269 43,593 56,025 75,145
Minority interests 781 830 753 827 1,139 1,390 1,411 1,386

7,198 11,016 13,760 15,764 11,408 44,983 57,436 76,531

Represented by:  
Fixed assets 17,272 12,349 13,455 16,607 18,276 25,031 65,016 61,923
Associated companies 0 303 333 905 1,068 2,349 2,503 4,369
Other investments 0 0 0 0 0 151 8,636 123
Goodwill on consolidation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,822

17,272 12,652 13,788 17,512 19,344 27,531 76,155 69,237

Current assets 10,901 21,123 34,124 24,689 36,607 65,941 67,541 99,687
Current liabilities (12,036) (18,210) (26,950) (18,434) (36,522) (41,767) (56,107) (68,672)
Net current assets/(liabilities) (1,135) 2,913 7,174 6,255 85 24,174 11,434 31,015

Less:
Non-current liabilities
Term loans (8,837) (4,175) (6,886) (7,820) (7,255) (5,692) (28,857) (22,198)
Deferred taxation (102) (294) (147) (38) (369) (458) (381) (261)
Others 0 (80) (169) (145) (397) (572) (915) (1,262)

(8,939) (4,549) (7,202) (8,003) (8,021) (6,722) (30,153) (23,721)
7,198 11,016 13,760 15,764 11,408 44,983 57,436 76,531

Other ratios:
Total assets 28,173 33,775 47,912 42,201 55,951 93,472 143,696 168,924
Long term debt on equity ratio 1.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.7 0.1 0.5 0.3
Return on total assets 3.7% 12.4% 7.0% 5.4% 13.3% 10.1% 9.3% 10.1%
Return of equity 16.2% 41.1% 25.6% 15.1% 72.5% 21.7% 23.9% 22.8%
Net asset value per share (cents) 3.6 5.6 7.2 8.3 5.7 18.5 24.3 25.4

Shareholders' Equity
• Shareholders' equity grew by 34% to $75.1m due to higher profits for the year.

Total Assets
• Fixed assets have decreased mainly due to one-off provision for impairment in value for certain properties of the Group.
• Associated companies have increased because of additional investments in OSIM (Malaysia) and OSIM (Taiwan).
• Other investments have decreased as most investments have been reclassified to current assets.

Net current assets
• Net current assets have increased mainly due to higher inventory holdings, reclassification of investments and more cash.

Long term borrowings
• The Group's long term debt equity ratio improved to 0.3 due to repayment of a term loan and monthly capital repayments.
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FINANCIAL highlights
Number of Outlets 

2002 2001 Growth

Hong Kong 66 55 20%
Singapore 73 58 26%
Taiwan 45 42 7%
Malaysia 57 41 39%
China 88 64 38%
Franchisees 59 43 37%

388 303 28%

• Worldwide point-of-sales network target of 500 by 2003 and 1,000 by 2008.
• The Group will expand through four-pronged strategy of new products, new outlets,

new countries and new business focuses.

Turnover by Geographical Segments
2002 2001 Growth

(S$'m) (S$'m)

Hong Kong 95.6 74.9 28%
Singapore 38.4 27.5 40%
Taiwan 46.7 28.9 62%
Malaysia 27.9 15.9 75%
China 19.9 11.6 72%
Franchisees 10.7 8.9 20%

239.2 167.7 43%

• Broad-based double digit percentage growth in every market.
• Taiwan recovered well from major flood in 2001.
• Malaysia and China continued to register fast growth.
• The Group will continue to target sustainable growth of between 20% to 30% in

every market.

Group Cash Flow 2002 2001

(S$'m) (S$'m)

Cash flows from operating activities before working capital 37.1 21.2

Net cash generated from operating activities 21.0 14.2

Net cash outflow from investing activities (9.2) (26.3)

Net cash (outflow) / inflow from financing activities (7.7) 2.2

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents held  4.1 (9.9)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 11.4 21.3

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 15.5 11.4

• Higher net cash generated from operating activities
due to better operating profits.

• Net cash outflow from investing activities has decreased
because we have paid for OSIM HQ mainly in 2001.

• Net cash outflow from financing activities in 2002
because of repayment of a term loan and monthly
capital repayment.
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FINANCIAL highlights
Quarterly Analysis

2002 2001 % change over
S$’000 S$’000 previous period

Turnover
First Quarter 42,011 34,547 22%
Second Quarter 62,797 46,939 34%
Third Quarter  68,773 41,966 64%
Fourth Quarter 65,581 44,275 48%

239,162 167,727 43%

Profit before tax
First Quarter 5,001 3,562 40%
Second Quarter 3,050 3,874 (21%)
Third Quarter 7,362 3,571 106%
Fourth Quarter 7,078 5,225 35%

22,491 16,232 39%

Net profit after tax
First Quarter 3,231 2,633 23%
Second Quarter 3,329 2,502 33%
Third Quarter 5,002 2,470 103%
Fourth Quarter 5,583 5,790 (4%)

17,145 13,395 28%

Turnover
• Consistent growth through all quarters.
• Third quarter in 2001 was affected by one-off major flood in Taiwan.

Profit before tax
• There was exceptional items of $3.78 million in second quarter due to provisions for impairment for

certain properties of the Group. Without these provisions, growth for second quarter would have
been 76%.

Net profit after tax
• Major flood in Taiwan affected third quarter profit in 2001. If there were no flood in Taiwan in 2001,

growth in 2002 would have been 49%.
• There were Business Headquarters tax incentive savings in fourth quarter of 2001. Excluding these

savings, growth in 2002 would have been 19%.
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FINANCIAL highlights
RISK MANAGEMENT

Industry specific risks

1. Changes in consumer tastes

As with all other consumer products, sales of our products are dependent on consumers’ demand for our products and are susceptible to changes in

consumer tastes. There is no assurance that our intensive efforts in niche marketing, brand management and product innovation will continue to enable us

to satisfy the evolving consumer tastes.

2. Susceptibility to downturns in economic cycles

The nature of our healthy lifestyle products make us more susceptible to reduced demand in times of economic downturn than other kinds of businesses

because our products may not be considered as essential health products.

Company specific risks

3. Foreign exchange risks

While our sales are mainly denominated in the respective local currencies in which the sales arise, namely the S$, RM, HK$, RMB and NT$, our costs of

procurement of products from our contract manufacturers are incurred mainly in US$, Yen and Euro. There is therefore an exchange transaction risk.

4. Expansion of business and franchisee network

We intend to expand further into two new businesses, Fitness Focus and Nutrition Focus. In addition, we also plan to open Health Focus and Hygiene Focus

stores in new geographical markets, and sign on new franchisees. There are risks that these new initiatives may not be successful.

CORPORATE STRUCTURE
OSIM International Ltd

100% 100% 30%85% 80% 49% 30% 30% 100%

* Dormant companies

OSIM
 (HK)

  OSIM
(TAIWAN)

OSIM
(SHANGHAI)

OSIM
(M’SIA)

OSIM
(THAI)

DAITO-OSIM
(SUZHOU)

DAITO-OSIM
(SHANGHAI)

DAITO-OSIM
(THAI)

OSIM
 NUTRICEUTICAL*

NUTRITION
FOCUS

(USA) INC*

100%
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FINANCIAL highlights

Share Price (S$) Market Value Ratios based on 20 Feb Closing

Highest trading price 0.985 Price/Earnings 16.03

20 Feb closing price 0.93 Price/Book Value 3.66

Market Value S$275m

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

January 2003 Announcement of final results for financial year 31 December 2002

March 2003 Despatch of annual reports to shareholders

March 2003 Annual general meeting ("AGM") & Extraordinary general meeting ("EGM")

April 2003 Payment of final dividends (subject to shareholders' approval at AGM)

April 2003 Allotment of bonus shares (subject to shareholders' approval at EGM)

April 2003 Announcement of first quarter results for financial year 31 December 2003

July 2003 Announcement of first half results for financial year 31 December 2003

September 2003 Payment of interim dividends (subject to shareholders' approval)

October 2003 Announcement of third quarter results for financial year 31 December 2003

January 2004 Announcement of final results for financial year 31 December 2003

SHARE PRICE AND TURNOVER
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CORPORATE governance report
OSIM WAS A FINALIST IN THE MOST TRANSPARENT COMPANY AWARD (COMMERCE) IN SECURITIES INVESTORS

ASSOCIATION (SINGAPORE)’S INVESTORS’ CHOICE AWARDS 2002

The Directors and Management of OSIM are committed to high standards of corporate governance in order to protect the interests

of our employees, customers and Shareholders. The SGX-ST’s Listing Manual requirement (the “listing requirement”), introduced

in April 2001, requires that an issuer which holds its Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) on or after 1 January 2003 (the “effective

date”) should describe its corporate governance practices with specific reference to the Code of Corporate Governance (“Code”)

in its annual report.

This Report describes OSIM’s corporate governance processes and activities. For proper reference, the relevant provisions of

the Code under discussion are identified in italics.

Board of Directors

Principle 1: Board’s Conduct of its Affairs

The principal functions of the Board are:

1) Approving the broad policies, strategies and financial objectives of the Company and monitoring the performance of 

management;

2) Overseeing the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk management, financial reporting and compliance;

3) Approving the nominations of board directors and appointment of key personnel;

4) Approving annual budgets, major funding proposals, investment and divestment proposals; and

5) Assuming responsibility for corporate governance.

Matters which are specifically reserved to the full Board for decision are those involving a conflict of interest for a substantial

shareholder or a director, material acquisitions and disposal of assets, corporate or financial restructuring and share issuances,
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CORPORATE governance report
dividends and other returns to shareholders and matters which require Board approval as specified under the Company’s

interested person transaction policy.

The Board conducts regular scheduled meetings on a quarterly basis. When circumstances require, ad-hoc meetings are arranged.

Board meetings are conducted in Singapore and attendance by directors are regular. There is therefore no requirement to conduct

meetings by way of a tele-conference or video-conference. The attendance of the directors at meetings of the Board and Board

committees, as well as the frequency of such meetings, is disclosed in this Report.

The Company worked closely with a professional corporate secretarial firm, Lim & Associates, to provide its directors with regular

updates on the latest governance and listing policies. All directors are also updated regularly concerning any changes in

company policies.

The Company also has an on-going training budget for the existing directors to fund the directors’ participation at industry

conferences and seminars, and to fund directors’ attendance at any course of instruction/training programme in connection with

their duties as directors, if such participation or attendance is required. This budget may be utilised by each director subject

to approval by the Chairman.

The Company has adopted a policy that directors are also welcome to request further explanations, briefings or informal

discussions on any aspects of the Company’s operations or business issues from the management. The Chairman and CEO

will make the necessary arrangements for the briefings, informal discussions or explanations required by the director.

Principle 2: Board Composition and Balance

The Board consists of three non-executive and independent directors, one non-executive director and three executive directors.

The independence of each director is reviewed annually by the nominating committee (“NC”), which was constitued on 27

December 2002. The NC adopts the Code’s definition of what constitutes an independent director in its review. As a result of

the NC’s review of the independence of each director, the NC is of the view that the non-executive directors of OSIM are
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CORPORATE governance report
independent directors (except for Ms Teo Sway Heong), and further, that no individual or small group of individuals dominate

the Board’s decision making process. Key information regarding the directors is given in the “Directors and Senior Management”

section of this annual report. The NC is of the view that the current Board comprise persons who as a group, provide core

competencies necessary to meet the Company’s targets.

The NC is of the view that the current board size of seven directors is appropriate, taking into account the nature and scope

of the Company’s operations.

Principle 3: Role of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company has the same Chairman and CEO, Mr Ron Sim Chye Hock and he is an executive director.

OSIM believes that the independent directors have demonstrated high commitment in their role as directors and have ensured

that there is a good balance of power and authority. As such, there is no need for the role of the Chairman and CEO to

be separated.

The Chairman and CEO is the most senior executive in the Company and bears executive responsibility for the Company’s

business, and also bears responsibility for the workings of the Board. The Chairman and CEO ensures that board meetings are

held when necessary and sets the board meeting agenda in consultation with the directors. The Chairman and CEO reviews

most board papers before they are presented to the Board and ensures that board members are provided with complete, adequate

and timely information. As a general rule, board papers are sent to directors in advance in order for directors to be adequately

prepared for the meeting. Management staff who have prepared the papers, or who can provide additional insight into the matters

to be discussed, are invited to present the paper or attend at the relevant time during the board meeting. The Chairman assists

to ensure that procedures are introduced to comply with the Code.
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Principle 6: Access to Information

In order to ensure that the Board is able to fulfill its responsibilities, management provides the board members with regular

updates of the financial position of the Company. A quarterly report of the Company’s activities is also provided to the Board.

Analysts’ reports on the Company are forwarded to the directors on an on-going basis as and when received. The directors have

also been provided with the phone numbers and e-mail particulars of the Company’s senior management and company secretary

to facilitate access.

Should directors, whether as a group or individually, need independent professional advice, the company secretary will, upon

direction by the Board, appoint a professional advisor selected by the group or the individual, and approved by the Chairman

and CEO, to render the advice. The cost of such professional advice will be borne by the Company.

The company secretary attends all board meetings and is responsible to ensure that board procedures are followed. It is the

company secretary’s responsibility to ensure that the Company complies with the requirements of the Companies Act. Together

with the other management staff of SGX, the company secretary is responsible for compliance with all other rules and regulations

which are applicable to the Company.

Please refer to the “Corporate Information” section of the annual report for the composition of the Company’s Board of Directors,

Board committees and the executive committee.
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Board Committees

Nominating Committee (“NC”)

Principle 4: Board Membership

The chairman of the NC, Mr Ong Kian Min, is an independent non-executive director. There are five members in the NC, three

of whom are independent non-executive directors.

The NC’s principal functions are:

1) To identify candidates and review all nominations for the appointment or re-appointment of members of the Board of Directors;

the CEO of the Company; and the members of the various Board committees, for the purpose of proposing such nominations

to the Board for its approval;

2) To determine the criteria for identifying candidates and reviewing nominations for the appointments referred to in

paragraph 1. One of the criteria for the appointment of a director is the independent status of the candidate;

3) To decide how the Board’s performance may be evaluated and propose objective performance criteria for the Board’s approval;

and

4) To assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, and the contribution by each individual director to the effectiveness of

the Board.

New directors are at present appointed by way of a board resolution, after the NC approves their appointment. Such new directors

must submit themselves for re-election at the next AGM of the Company. Article 92 of the Articles requires one third of the Board

to retire by rotation at every AGM.
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Principle 5: Board Performance

The NC, in considering the re-appointment of any director, evaluates the performance of the director. With effect from 2003,

the Chairman & CEO will assess each director’s contribution to the Board, and discuss the results with the chairman of the NC.

The assessment parameters includes attendance record at meetings of the Board and Board committees, intensity of participation

at meetings, the quality of interventions and special contributions.

The NC will evaluate the Board’s performance as a whole with effect from 2003. The assessment process adopted both quantitative

and qualitative criteria, such as return on equity, the success of the strategic and long-term objectives set by the Board, and

the effectiveness of the Board in monitoring management’s performance against the goals that have been set by the Board.

The NC will be working with an external professional firm on the evaluation criteria.

Audit Committee (“AC”)

Principle 11: Audit Committee

Principle 12: Internal Controls

The AC comprises three members, all of whom are independent non-executive directors.

The chairman of the AC, Mr Michael Kan Yuet Yun, is by profession a Chartered Accountant. The other members of the AC have

many years of experience in business management, finance and legal services. The NC is of the view that the members of the

AC have sufficient financial management expertise and experience to discharge the AC’s functions.

The AC performs the following main functions:

1) Recommends to the Board of Directors the external auditors to be nominated, approves the compensation of the external 

auditors, and reviews, the scope and results of the audit, and its cost-effectiveness;

65



CORPORATE governance report
2) Reviews (with the other committees, management and the external auditors) significant risks or exposures that exist and 

assesses the steps management has taken to minimise such risk to the Company;

3) Reviews with the Chief Financial Officer and external auditors at the completion of the quarterly reviews and annual examination:

• the Company’s quarterly and audited annual financial statements and related footnotes, and the integrity of financial reporting

of the Company including accounting principles for recommendation to the Board for approval;

• the external auditor’s audit of the annual financial statements and reports

thereon;

• the adequacy of the Company’s system of accounting and internal controls;

• the assistance given by management to external auditors;

• any related significant findings and recommendations of the external auditors and internal auditors together with management’s

responses thereto; and

• any significant changes required in the external auditors’ audit plan, any serious difficulties or disputes with management

encountered during the course of the audit and their resolution, and other matters related to the conduct of the audit;

4) Considers and reviews with management and the Corporate System Manager annually the following major items:

• significant internal audit observations during the year and management’s responses thereto;

• the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls over management, business and technology systems and practices; 

and

• any changes required in the planned scope of the Corporate System Manager’s audit plan and any difficulties encountered

in the course of their audits, including any restrictions on the scope of internal audit’s work or access to required information;

5) Reviews legal and regulatory matters that may have a material impact on the financial statements, related exchange compliance

policies, and programmes and reports received from regulators;

6) Meets with the external auditors, other committees, and management in separate executive sessions to discuss any matters

that these groups believe should be discussed privately with the AC; and

7) Reports actions and minutes of the AC to the Board of Directors with such recommendations as the AC considers appropriate.

The AC has the express power to conduct or authorise investigations into any matters within its terms of reference. Minutes of

the AC meetings are regularly submitted to the Board for its information and review.
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The AC has conducted an annual review of the volume of non-audit services to satisfy itself that the nature and extent of such

services will not prejudice the independence and objectivity of the auditors before confirming their re-nomination. The AC also

conducts a review of interested person transactions. The AC also conducts a review to ensure that there are no improper activities

of the Company (if any).

The AC meets with the external and internal auditors, without the presence of management, at least once a year.

The Company’s external auditors, Ernst & Young (“EY”), carry out, in the course of their statutory audit, a review of the effectiveness

of the Company’s material internal controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk management

annually to the extent of their scope as laid out in their audit plan. Material non-compliance and internal control weaknesses

noted during their audit, and the auditors’ recommendations, are reported to the AC. The Corporate System Manager follows

up on EY’s recommendations as part of its role in the review of the Company’s internal control systems.

The AC has reviewed the Company’s risk assessment, and based on the IA audit reports and management controls in place, it

is satisfied that there are adequate internal controls in the Company. The AC expects the risk assessment process to be a

continuing process.

Principle 13: Internal Audits

The Internal Audit (“IA”) is headed by the Corporate System Manager.  She reports directly to the chairman of the AC on audit

matters, and to the Chief Financial Officer on administrative matters. The AC reviews IA’s reports on a half yearly basis. The AC

also reviews and approves the annual IA plans and resources to ensure that the IA has the necessary resources to adequately

perform its functions. The Corporate System Manager has adopted the Standards for Professional Practice of Internal Auditing

set by The Institute of Internal Auditors.

To ensure the adequacy of the internal audit function, the AC reviews the IA’s activities on a half yearly basis.

This year, the Corporate System Manager, together with PriceWaterhouseCoopers and the supervision of the AC, has completed
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the development of the Minimum Acceptable Controls and Control Self-Assessment programmes for the Company. This assessment

will be done on a ongoing basis and will be rolled to subsidiaries of the Company over time.

Remuneration Committee (“RC”)

Principle 7: Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies

Principle 8: Level and Mix of Remuneration

Principle 9: Disclosure on Remuneration

The RC was formed on 27 December 2002 by combining the previous Compensation Committee and OSIM Share Option

Scheme Committee.

The RC consists of five directors, of whom three are non-executive and independent directors. The RC is chaired by Mr Ong

Kian Min, an independent and non-executive director.

The RC’s principal responsibilities are to:

1) Approve the structure of the compensation programme for directors and senior management to ensure that the programme 

is competitive and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate senior management of the required quality to run the Company 

successfully;

2) Review directors’ and senior management’s compensation annually and determine appropriate adjustments; and

3) Administer the OSIM Employee Share Option Scheme (the “OSIM ESOS”). Any matter pertaining or pursuant to the OSIM 

ESOS and any dispute and uncertainty as to the interpretation of the OSIM ESOS, any rule, regulation or procedure thereunder

or any rights under the OSIM ESOS shall be determined by the RC.
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The CEO and executive directors’ remuneration packages include a variable bonus element which is performance-related.

Directors’ fees are set in accordance with a remuneration framework comprising basic fees. Executive directors do not receive

directors’ fees. Non-executive directors are paid directors’ fees, subject to approval at the AGM.

For competitive reasons, the Company is not disclosing each individual director’s remuneration. Instead, we are disclosing the

band of remuneration in note 29 to the financial statements.

The Company adopts a remuneration policy for staff comprising a fixed component and a variable component. The fixed

component is in form of a base salary. The variable component is in the form of a variable bonus that is linked to the Company

and individual performance. Another element of the variable component is the grant of share options to staff under the OSIM

ESOS. This seeks to align the interests of staff with that of the shareholders. Staff appraisals are conducted twice in a year.

Communication with Shareholders

Principle 10: Accountability and Audit

Principle 14: Communication with Shareholders

Principle 15: Greater Shareholder Participation

The Company has adopted quarterly results reporting since the third quarter of 2001. OSIM holds a media and analysts briefing

of its quarterly, half-year and full-year results. The results are published through the MASNET, news releases and the Company’s

website and investor relations sites Zaobao.com, Wallstraits, IRASIA and Shareinvestor. All information on the Company’s new

initiatives are first disseminated via MASNET followed by a news release, which is also available on the website.

Price sensitive information is first publicly released, either before the Company meets with any group of investors or analysts

or simultaneously with such meetings. Results and annual reports are announced or issued within the mandatory period and

are available on the Company’s website. The Company does not practise selective disclosure.
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The Company communicates with its investors on a regular basis and attends to their queries. It also retained an Investor

Relations consultant and a Public Relations firm. All shareholders of the Company receive the annual report and notice of AGM.

The notice is also advertised in newspapers and made available on the MASNET. At AGMs, shareholders are given the opportunity

to air their views and ask directors or management questions regarding the Company.

The Articles allow a member of the Company to appoint one or two proxies to attend and vote instead of the member.

Dealings in Securities

The Company has adopted internal codes pursuant to the SGX-ST Best Practices Guide applicable to all its officers in relation

to dealings in the Company’s securities. Its officers are not allowed to deal in the Company’s shares during the period commencing

one month before the announcement of the Company’s quarterly results and ending on the date of the announcement of

the results.

Interested Person Transactions Policy

The Company has adopted an internal policy in respect of any transactions with interested persons and has set out the procedures

for review and approval of the Company’s interested person transactions. Details of the interested person transactions are

disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements under transactions with affiliated companies.

Best Practices Guide

The Company has complied materially with the Best Practices Guide issued by SGX-ST.

Peter Lee Hwai Kiat

Company Secretary
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Name No. of

meetings

held

OSIM Board

No. of

meetings

attended

Audit Committee

No. of

meetings

held

No. of

meetings

attended

Compensation

Committee*

OSIM Share Option

Scheme Committee*

No. of

meetings

held

No. of

meetings

attended

No. of

meetings

held

No. of

meetings

attended

71

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

4

1

2

5

5

4

na

6

na

na

na

7

6

na

7

na

na

na

7

7

3

3

3

na

na

3

3

3

3

0

na

na

3

3

3

2

na

na

na

3

3

3

3

na

na

na

3

3

Dr Ron Sim

Chye Hock

Mr Charlie

Teo Chay Lee

Mr Michael

Kan Yuet Yun

Mr Richard

Leow Lian Soon

Ms Teo

Sway Heong

Mr Khor

Peng Soon

Mr Ong

Kian Min

* These two committees were reconstituted as Remuneration Committee on 27 December 2002.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
Dr Ron Sim Chye Hock

Executive Directors
Mr Charlie Teo Chay Lee
( Chief Operating Officer, HQ & South Asia )
Mr Richard Leow Lian Soon
( Chief Operating Officer, North Asia )

Non-executive Directors
Ms Teo Sway Heong

Independent Directors
Mr Michael Kan Yuet Yun
Mr Ong Kian Min
Mr Khor Peng Soon

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Chairman
Dr Ron Sim Chye Hock

Mr Charlie Teo Chay Lee
Mr Richard Leow Lian Soon
Mr Peter Lee Hwai Kiat
Mr See Toh Chee Wai
Mr Tan Kia Tong

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Chairman
Mr Michael Kan Yuet Yun

Mr Ong Kian Min
Mr Khor Peng Soon

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Chairman
Mr Ong Kian Min

Mr Michael Kan Yuet Yun
Mr Khor Peng Soon
Dr Ron Sim Chye Hock
Mr Charlie Teo Chay Lee

NOMINATING COMMITTEE
Chairman
Mr Ong Kian Min

Mr Michael Kan Yuet Yun
Mr Khor Peng Soon
Dr Ron Sim Chye Hock
Mr Charlie Teo Chay Lee

REGISTERED OFFICE
65 Ubi Avenue 1
OSIM Headquarters
Singapore 408939

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
10 Collyer Quay
#21-01 Ocean Building
Singapore 049315

Partner-in-charge
since financial year ended 31 Dec 2002
Mr Philip Ling Soon Hwa

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr Peter Lee Hwai Kiat

REGISTRAR AND SHARE
TRANSFER OFFICE
B.A.C.S. Private Limited
63 Cantonment Road
Singapore 089758

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Standard Chartered Bank
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation
The Development Bank of Singapore
RHB Bank Berhad
ABSA Bank
ABN-AMRO Bank
Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation
Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr Ron Sim Chye Hock, aged 44, is the founder, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Group. Dr Sim is responsible for

the overall strategic and marketing directions, and management policies of the Group. Dr Sim has 20 years of experience in the

healthy lifestyle industry as he founded the Group’s business in 1983. In 1986, he led OSIM’s regional expansion into Hong

Kong, and into Taiwan the following year. On 28 March 2000, Dr Sim was conferred a Doctor of Philosophy in Business

Administration by the Wisconsin International University in recognition of his business achievements. He was also awarded a

Doctor of Philosophy in Marketing Management by the American University of Hawaii on 16 November 2002. In 2001, Dr Sim

was appointed to the Sub-Committee on Entrepreneurship and Internationalisation of the Singapore Economic Review Committee.

In 2002, he was appointed a Vice-President of the Hong Kong – Singapore Business Association.

Mr Charlie Teo Chay Lee, aged 44, is an executive Director and Group Chief Operating Officer (HQ & South Asia) of OSIM.

He was appointed to the Board in June 2000. Mr Teo is responsible for managing the Group’s operations in Singapore and South

Asian countries including Malaysia, Thailand and Indonesia. Mr Teo was instrumental in establishing the Singapore headquarters

as a role model for its subsidiaries. From 1979 to 1988, Mr Teo was working with Smith Corona.  He joined the Group in 1989.

Mr Richard Leow Lian Soon, aged 43, is an executive Director and Chief Operating Officer (North Asia) of the Group. Mr Leow

is in charge of the Group’s operations in North Asia. He was instrumental in the Group’s expansion into its key markets of Taiwan,

China and Hong Kong. He was appointed to the Board in June 2000. Prior to joining the Group in 1987, he worked in the retail

industry from 1983 to 1986.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms Teo Sway Heong, aged 40, is a non-executive Director of the Group since March 2000. She is also the wife of Dr Ron Sim

Chye Hock. From 1987 to February 2000, she was one of the Group’s Executive Directors. At that time, she managed administration

and human resources, and made invaluable contributions to the Group’s growth during its formative years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Khor Peng Soon, aged 53, is an independent non-executive Director of the Group since June 2000. He is a managing director

of Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited. Mr Khor was previously managing director of Sembawang Aviation Pte Ltd from August

1991 to November 1997 and group corporate planning director of Sembawang Holdings Pte Ltd from November 1990 to February

1992. Prior to that date, he had held positions in Ernst & Young, Economic Development Board and Telecoms Malaysia. Mr Khor

was awarded the Colombo Plan Scholarship in 1969 and was conferred a Bachelor of Engineering (First Class Honours)

(Mechanical) by the University of Auckland, New Zealand in 1972 and a Masters of Engineering Science (Industrial Engineering)

from the University of New South Wales, Australia in 1981. Mr Khor sits on the boards of several other companies in Singapore

and the region.

Mr Michael Kan Yuet Yun, PBM, aged 64, is an independent non-executive Director of the Group since June 2000, and Chairman

of the Group’s Audit Committee. Mr Kan was previously the finance director of British-American Tobacco Co (Singapore) Ltd

and Singapore Tobacco Co (Pte) Ltd (‘‘BAT group’’). He was with the BAT group from 1969 to October 1999. Mr Kan graduated

with a Bachelor of Economics (Honours) from University of Sydney and is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants

in England and Wales and the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore. For his community work, Mr Kan is the

chairman of the management committee of the Tanjong Pagar Community Club and a member of Tanjong Pagar Citizens

Consultative Committee. He is also the Vice-Chairman of the Children’s Aid Society. Mr Kan was conferred The Pingkat Bakti

Masyarakat (PBM) in the 1998 National Day Awards. Mr Kan sits on the boards of several other companies in Singapore and

the region.

Mr Ong Kian Min, aged 42, has been an independent non-executive Director of the Group since June 2000. Mr Ong is the

Chairman of both the Group’s Remuneration Committee and Nominating Committee.  Mr Ong is currently an Advocate and

Solicitor and a consultant with Drew & Napier LLC, a Singapore law firm.  He was called to the Bar of England and Wales in

1988 and to the Singapore Bar the following year. Mr Ong has also been a Member of Parliament since January 1997 and serves

as Vice Chairman of the Government Parliamentary Committee (GPC) for Transport and as a member of the GPC for Finance,

Trade and Industry.  Mr Ong was awarded the President’s Scholarship and Police Force Scholarship in 1979. He holds a Bachelor

of Laws (Honours) external degree from the University of London and a Bachelor of Science (Honours) degree from the Imperial

College of Science and Technology in England.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr Peter Lee Hwai Kiat, aged 39, is the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary of the Group. He is overall responsible

for financial and accounting control, investor relations and corporate secretarial functions of the Group. Mr Lee has about 16

years of financial control and audit experience. He was Group Financial Controller of Golden Village, a joint venture between

Australia’s Village Roadshow and Hong Kong’s Golden Harvest, and also worked at Coopers & Lybrand (now known as

PricewaterhouseCoopers). Mr Lee graduated with a Bachelor of Accountancy degree from the National University of Singapore.

He is a CPA and is a member of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore. Mr Lee joined OSIM in 2000.

Mr See Toh Chee Wai, aged 34, is the Chief Information Officer of the Group. He is responsible for developing strategies and

aligning the use of information technology with the Group’s business development and processes. Mr See Toh was MIS manager

at Nippon Paint (S) Pte Ltd and Heraeus Precision Engineering Pte Ltd. He graduated from the National University of Ireland

with an honours degree in Information Technology in 1999. Mr See Toh joined OSIM in 2001 as MIS manager and was promoted

to CIO in 2002.

Mr Tan Kia Tong, aged 48, is the Chief Technical Officer of the Group. He is responsible for formulating, planning, developing

R&D strategies and managing the Group’s R&D activities. He brought with him 22 years of experience in product design

development, system and manufacturing automation for both local and global companies while he was at SISIR, PSB Singapore

and PSB Corporation (now known as SPRING Singapore). He obtained his Master of Science (MSc) in Electrical & Electronic

Engineering at the University of Bradford/UMIST in 1980. He is a Chartered Engineer and a Member of the Institution of Electrical

Engineers, UK. He was conferred the Public Administration Medal (Bronze) in 2000. Mr Tan joined OSIM in 2002.
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SINGAPORE

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Dr Ron Sim Chye Hock, Chairman & CEO

Mr Charlie Teo Chay Lee, Director & COO, HQ & South Asia

Mr Richard Leow Lian Soon, Director & COO, North Asia

Mr Peter Lee Hwai Kiat, CFO & Company Secretary

Mr See Toh Chee Wai, Chief Information Officer

Mr Tan Kia Tong, Chief Technology Officer

BRAND MANAGEMENT TEAM

Ms Tan Cheng Cheng, Brand Management Team,  Manager

Mr Lim Chong Kiat, Brand Management Team,  Manager

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

Mr Richard Lowe, General Manager, Club Focus

Mr Alan Lim, Project Manager, Thailand

Mr Roy Kwan, Area Manager, Thailand

Mr Bernard Tang, Project Manager, Indonesia

FRANCHISE

Mr Eric Kuan, Franchise Manager

Mr Francis Leow, Franchise Manager

Mr Boyz Lim, Assistant Franchise Manager

Mr Roy Tan, Assistant Franchise Manager

FINANCE, ACCOUNTING AND CORPORATE SERVICES

Ms Diana Chim, Corporate System Manager

Ms Tan Swee Kim, Group Accountant, Hong Kong & Taiwan

Ms Celine Teo, Group Accountant, M’sia, Indonesia, Thai & USA

Mr Simon Soo, Project Accountant, China

Mr Freddy Ong, Accountant, Taxation

Ms Shirley Lee, Assistant Manager, Legal & Corporate Services

Ms Irene Lee, Accountant, Singapore

Ms Lee Bee Ling, Assistant Accountant, Singapore

HUMAN RESOURCE AND ADMINISTRATION

Ms Josephine Cheng, HR & Admin Manager

Ms Caryl Tay, Assistant HR & Admin Manager

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Ms Lucily Villaceran, Assistant MIS Manager

MARKETING

Ms Sandra Gan, Marketing Manager

Mr James Huang, Business Development Manager

OPERATIONS

Mr Hong Hock Lye, Operations Manager

Mr Stanley Ko, Assistant Operations Manager

OUR TEAM
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HONG KONG

Ms Maria Mok, Administration Manager

Ms Jessie Wong, Accounting Manager

Ms Angel Tse, Accountant

Ms Jenny Yip, Marketing Manager

Mr John Cheong, Division Manager, Health Focus

Mr Lo Kam Wah, Area Manager, Health Focus

Ms Lin Jian Yu, Area Manager, Health Focus

Mr Chow Man Keung, Area Manager, Health Focus

Mr Manko Chan, Assistant Sales Manager, Health Focus

Mr Cheung Man Wai, Assistant Sales Manager, Health Focus

Ms Tracy Te Chun, Assistant Sales Manager, Health Focus

Mr Lui Ngai Fan, Assistant Sales Manager, Health Focus

Ms Poon Ying, Assistant Sales Manager, Health Focus

Mr Kenny Lam, Assistant Sales Manager, Hygiene Focus

Mr Tonly Huen, Assistant Manager, Hygiene Focus

TAIWAN

Mr Brent Chen, Director and Chief Executive Officer

Ms Jane Huang, Executive Director

Ms Anne Yang, Assistant General Manager

Ms Amy Chen, Finance Manager

Mr Richard Huang Tze Chiang, Marketing Manager

Ms Vanessa Yu, Business Development Manager

Ms Maggie Lin, Assistant Logistic Manager

Ms Huang Hsiu Yuh, Area Manager, Sales

Ms Hung Yu Kuan, Area Manager, Sales
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PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

Ms Celine Cha, Senior Product Development Manager

Mr Ricky Chee, Assistant Product Development Manager

PRODUCT TRAINING

Ms Lily Lim, Training Supervisor

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Mr Ken Chuang, Assistant Manager, Product Design

SALES

Mr Bruce Cha, Division Manager, Health Focus

Mr Harry Lee, Division Manager, Fitness Focus

Mr Sam Ng, Sales Manager, Health Focus

Mr Colin Goh, Area Manager, Health Focus

Mr Melvin Quek, Area Manager, Health Focus

Mr Samuel Cheng, Area Manager, Health Focus

Ms Jess Ong, Area Manager, Health Focus

Mr Vincent Yeo, Area Manager, Health Focus

Mr Eric Lawrence Lim, Asst. Area Manager, Hygiene Focus

Mr Willie Koh, Assistant Area Manager, Hygiene Focus

WHOLESALE

Ms Iris Leong, Assistant Wholesales Manager
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MALAYSIA

Mr Tay Sim Kim, Director and Chief Executive Officer

Ms Eva Ho Yoke Wah, Executive Director

Ms Chia Sook Fun, Business Development Manager

Ms Mae Lee, HR & Admin Manager

Mr Jonas Teh Kock Tai, Accountant

Mr Arthur Chow, Operations Manager

Mr Kelvin Koh, MIS Manager

Mr Benny Mok Chun Yun, Area Manager, Health Focus

Mr Mok Siew Ming, Area Manager, Health Focus

Lim Hoo Hang, Area Manager, Health Focus

Mr Yan Wei Fei, Area Manager, Health Focus

Mr Chew  Ming Suen, Area Manager, Hygiene Focus

Mr Elvin Tay, Area Manager, Hygiene Focus

Mr Tee Guan Chong, Area Manager, Nutrition Focus

CHINA

Beijing

Mr Wang Bangzhi, Accounting Manager

Mr Zhang Hao, Administration Manager

Ms Wang Jun Rong, Assistant Admin Manager

Ms Jia Jing Mei, Marketing Manager

Mr Roger Lim, Sales Manager

Ms Zhang Jiying, Assistant Manager, Sales

Ms Li Zhong Ming, Assistant Manager, Sales

Ms Pu Yanxin, Assistant Manager, Sales

CHINA

Shanghai

Mr Shan Xiao Fu, Assistant Accounting Manager

Mr Cheng Shao Chun, Admin Manager

Mr Gary Lai, Marketing Manager

Ms Betty Zhou, Marketing Manager

Ms Sandy Lou, Assistant Marketing Manager

Mr Philip Ting, Project Manager

Ms Wu Jing Yi, Sales Manager

Ms Sunyan, Assistant Manager, Sales

Ms Dai Xin Hua, Assistant Manager, Sales

Guangzhou

Ms Zheng Jieru, Admin Manager

Ms Fang Xia, Assistant Marketing Manager

Mr Alcott Ngan, Sales Manager

Ms Yi Mei Ying, Assistant Manager, Sales

Ms Maggie To, Assistant Manager, Sales

INDONESIA

Mr Chandra Makmuri, Director and CEO

Mr Teddy Marco, Marketing Manager

Mr Ahmad Anwar, Assistant Area Manager, Sales

Ms Laura Renyut, HR and Admin Manager

Ms Rita Wijaya, Accounting Manager

OUR TEAM
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USA

Mr Maxie Tay, Chief Executive Officer

Ms Vivian Xa, Finance Manager

AUSTRALIA

Mr Low Hai Jen, Director and Chief Executive Officer

CANADA

Mr Ron Steinke, Director and Chief Executive Officer

UNITED KINGDOM

Mr Lewis Robinson, Managing Director

UAE & KUWAIT

Mr Geoff Hunter, General Manager

IRELAND

Alan Berrington, Managing Director

Mr Paul Kennedy, Director

SOUTH AFRICA

Steve Murphy, Director and Chief Executive Officer

SOUTH KOREA

Harry Cheigh, Director and Chief Executive Officer

PHILIPPINES

Jose Vito B. Borromeo, Chairman and CEO

JV  L Borromeo, Vice-President, Operations

SAUDI ARABIA

Mohamed A. Hafiz, Managing Director

Ahmed  Alwadi, Brand Manager
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OSIM global NETWORK
SINGAPORE

OSIM INTERNATIONAL LTD

65 Ubi Avenue 1

OSIM Headquarters

Singapore 408939

Tel: (65) 6747 6866

Fax: (65) 6747 6769

Email: IR@osim.com.sg

HONG KONG

OSIM (HK) CO LTD

Room 1812-22, 18/F

No 1 Hung To Road

Kwun Tong, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2790 2300

Fax: (852) 2342 8510

Email: hotline@osim.com.hk

MALAYSIA

OSIM (M) SDN BHD

No 10 Jalan 4/91A

Taman Shamelin Perkasa

Cheras 56100, Kuala Lumpur

Malaysia

Tel: (02-03) 9206 7000

Fax: (02-03) 9206 7128

Email: osim@osim.com.my

CHINA

OSIM (BEIJING) CO LTD

2 Floor, Business Building No.2 Congdian

Alley Xizhimen

Xicheng District, Beijing 100035

China

Tel: (86-10) 6611 2667

Fax: (86-10) 6611 2663

Email: Z_Hao@osim.com.cn

OSIM INTERNATIONAL TRADING

(SHANGHAI) CO LTD

2F (S) Jin Niu Building

No 77 E Shan Road

Pudong New Area

Shanghai 200127 China

Tel: (86-21) 5870 3427

Fax: (86-21) 5870 4724

Email: service@osim.com.cn

OSIM (GUANGZHOU) CO LTD

Suite 907 Goldlion Digital

Network Center

138 Tiyu Road East, Tianhe District

Guangzhou, China

Tel: (86-20) 3878 1421

Fax: (86-20) 3878 0404

Email: osimgz@public.guangzh.gd.cn

TAIWAN

OSIM (TAIWAN) CO LTD

11F, No 176, Jian Yi Road

Far East Century Park (Building G)

Chung Ho City, Taipei Hsien,

Taiwan R.O.C

Tel: (886-2) 8227 1589

Fax: (886-2) 8227 1556

Email: osimtwn@osim.com.tw

AUSTRALIA

OSIM (AUSTRALIA) PTY LTD

P. O. Box 1137, Chatswood

NSW 2057, Australia

Tel: (61-2) 9411 8498

Fax: (61-2) 9411 8498

Email: sales@osim.com.au

CANADA

HEALTH FOCUS HOLDINGS INC

2165-12191 Hammersmith Way

Richmond, B.C. V7A 5H2

Canada

Tel: (604) 271 6746

Fax: (604) 271 6777

Email: info@osimcanada.ca
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INDONESIA

PT. OSIM

(OSIM SELARAS INDONESIA MAKMUR)

Jl Jembatan III, No 36 FR

Jakarta 14450, Indonesia

Tel: (62-21) 666 02345

Fax: (62-21) 661 8943

Email: sales@osim.co.id

IRELAND

OSIM (IRELAND) LTD

Unit 3F Riverview Business Park

New Nangor Road

Dublin 12, Ireland

Tel: (353-1) 850 200 707

Email: info@osimireland.com

PHILIPPINES

ASIAN THERAPEUTICS INC

845 S. Laurel St.

Mandaluyong City

Philippines 1501

Tel: (632) 721 0564

Email: mcgatdula@hotmail.com

SAUDI ARABIA

AL-SAWANI GROUP

P. O. Box 9411, Jeddah 21413

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Tel: (9662) 691 2912

Fax: (9662) 691 1320

Email: osim-info@al-sawani.com

SOUTH AFRICA

OSIM (SOUTH AFRICA) PTY LTD

47 Athlone Road, Parkview

Johannesburg 2193

South Africa

Tel: (27-11) 646 4170

Fax: (27-11) 646 4170

Email: osim@mweb.co.za

SOUTH KOREA

MOMUS GROUP, KOREA, INC

Shinhan Building 2nd Floor

12-3 Yoido-dong

Youngdeungpo-Ku

Seoul, 150-869, Korea

Tel: (82-2) 724 4900

Fax: (82-2) 724 4901

UAE and KUWAIT

RSH (MIDDLE EAST) LLC

Trade Center Road

PO Box 20764, Bur Dubai

Dubai - UAE

Tel: (971) 4 396 6676

Fax: (971) 4 396 6679

Email: info@rshme.co.ae

USA

OSIM (USA) INC

1980 West Corporate Way

Anaheim, CA 92801, USA

Tel: (714) 630 1600

Fax: (714) 630 4009

Email: osim@osimusa.com

THAILAND

OSIM (THAILAND) CO. LTD

93, Sukhumvit Soi 55

Sukhumvit Road

Klongtonnua, Wattana

Bangkok 10110

Thailand

Tel: (66-2) 714 7518

Fax: (66-2) 714 7520

Email: osim@samart.co.th

DAITO-OSIM (THAILAND) CO LTD

454/12, Moo 9, Nongi, Kabinburi

Prachinburi 25110, Thailand

Tel: (66-37) 455 084

Fax: (66-37) 204 145

Email: postmaster@daito-osim.com

UK

OSIM (UK) LTD

Greetwell Place, 2 Limekiln Way

Greetwell Road

Lincoln, LNZ 4US

United Kingdom

Tel: (44-1522) 546 199

Fax: (44-1522) 544 770

Email: info@osim-uk.co.uk
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SIGNIFICANT milestones
February 2003

• OSIM opened first outlet in Philippines.

January 2003

• OSIM released full year results for FY2002. OSIM achieved a 43% turnover growth to $239m and net profit increased 28% to

$17.1m. A final dividend of 0.90 cents per ordinary share was declared.  In addition, a 1-for-4 bonus issue was recommended.

• OSIM unveiled its new face Gong Li in Malaysia.

December 2002

• Gong Li was introduced as OSIM’s new face in Hong Kong.

November 2002

• OSIM Ireland started first outlet.

October 2002

• OSIM announced a group net profit increase of 53% to $11.6 million for the 9 months ended 30 September 2002.

• OSIM was one of top 14 winners of the Singapore Brand Award 2002.

• World-acclaimed Chinese actress Gong Li presented as OSIM’s "New Celebrity Face" in Singapore.

• OSIM was selected as the Forbes Global Top 200 Best Small Companies.

September 2002

• OSIM opened first outlets in Canada and Australia.

• OSIM was a finalist in the Most Transparent Company Award (Commerce) in Securities Investors Association (Singapore)’s 

Investors’ Choice Awards 2002.

• China launched the iMedic chair.

August 2002

• Half-year results for financial year 2002 announced. OSIM achieved a 29% turnover growth to $105m and net profit increase

of 28% to $6.6m over the corresponding period.  An interim dividend of 0.45 cents per share was proposed.



SIGNIFICANT milestones
August 2002

• OSIM announced the completion of share purchase agreements - OSIM (M) Sdn Bhd and OSIM (Taiwan) Co. Ltd.

June 2002

• OSIM launched iMedic Chair in Taiwan.

• OSIM announced that the Company has entered into share purchase agreements with several vendors to acquire 20% and 

15% of the total issued and paid-up capital of OSIM (M) Sdn Bhd and OSIM GHC (Taiwan) Co Ltd respectively.

May 2002

• OSIM UK opened first outlet.

April 2002

• OSIM announced a group net profit increase of 23% to $3.2m for the 3 months ended 31 March 2002.

• OSIM iMedic chair was officially launched in Singapore. Designer of iMedic, Dr Matsuura, made a trip from Japan to give a 

presentation during the press conference.

March 2002

• OSIM launched iMedic Chair in Hong Kong.

February 2002

• OSIM announced broad-based growth and a Group record net profit of $13.4m, a 42% increase over the corresponding period.

 A final dividend of 0.45 cents per ordinary share was declared.  In addition, a 1-for-4 bonus issue was proposed.

January 2002

• Official opening of new OSIM Headquarters by the Minister for Trade and Industry, BG George Yeo.  At the same time, the 

Economic Development Board awarded OSIM Business Headquarters tax incentive.

• OSIM adopted the Children’s Cancer Foundation over a four-year period.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002
(Amounts in Singapore dollars unless otherwise stated)

The directors are pleased to present their report to the members together with the audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group
for the financial year ended 31 December 2002.

Directors

The directors of the Company in office at the date of this report are :

Dr Ron Sim Chye Hock
Teo Sway Heong
Charlie Teo Chay Lee
Richard Leow Lian Soon
Michael Kan Yuet Yun
Ong Kian Min
Khor Peng Soon

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Company are those of marketing, distributing and franchising of healthy lifestyle products.  The principal activities of
its subsidiaries are as shown in Note 9 to the financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

Results for the financial year
Group Company
$ ‘000 $ ‘000

Profit after tax and minority interests 17,145 8,336
Accumulated profits, brought forward 21,265 24,787

Profits available for appropriation 38,410 33,123
Dividends (1,849) (1,849)
Appropriation to enterprise expansion fund (48) -

Accumulated profits, carried forward 36,513 31,274

Material movements in reserves and provisions

Except as shown in the financial statements, there were no material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year.
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Acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries

During the financial year, the Company acquired the following subsidiaries:
Attributable net tangible

Name of company Interest before acquisition Interest acquired Interest after acquisition Consideration assets at acquisition
% % % $’000 $’000

OSIM (M) Sdn Bhd 60 20 80 3,177 709
OSIM (Taiwan) Co., Ltd 70 15 85 1,209 301
OSIM Nutriceutical Pte Ltd - 100 100 - -

The acquisition of OSIM (M) Sdn Bhd and OSIM (Taiwan) Co., Ltd were settled via the issue of 5,849,000 new ordinary shares of $0.05 each at
$0.75 per share.

The consideration and attributable net tangible assets of OSIM Nutriceutical Pte Ltd is $2.

During the financial year, Nutrition Focus (USA) Inc was incorporated for 1 ordinary share at US$1 per share.

No subsidiary was disposed of during the financial year.

Issue of shares and debentures

During the financial year, Company issued 5,849,000 new ordinary shares of $0.05 each at $0.75 per share for acquiring an additional 20% and
15% of the issued and paid up capital of OSIM (M) Sdn Bhd and OSIM (Taiwan) Co., Ltd respectively. The Company issued 749,000, 280,500 and
75,000 new ordinary shares of $0.05 each at $0.40, $0.32 and $0.328 per share respectively for cash for options exercised under OSIM Share
Option Scheme. The Company also issued 57,833,250 ordinary shares of $0.05 each at par out of the share premium.

During the financial year, a subsidiary, Nutrition Focus (USA) Inc issued 1 ordinary share at US$1 per share to incorporate the company.

No other shares or debentures were issued by any company in the Group during the financial year.

Arrangements to enable directors to acquire shares and debentures

Except for the OSIM Share Option Scheme, neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any
arrangement whose object is to enable directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in shares and debentures

The following directors, who held office at the end of the financial year, had, according to the register of directors’ shareholdings required to be
kept under section 164 of the Companies Act, an interest in shares of the Company and related corporations, as stated below :

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Cont’d)
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Directors’ interests in shares and debentures (cont’d)

Other shareholdings in which the
Held by directors as at directors are deemed to have an interest

1.1.2002 31.12.2002 21.1.2003 1.1.2002 31.12.2002 21.1.2003

OSIM International Ltd
Ordinary shares of $0.05 each

Dr Ron Sim Chye Hock   157,315,800  186,644,750  186,644,750 1,804,200     2,255,250    2,255,250
Teo Sway Heong     1,804,200    2,255,250    2,255,250 157,315,800   186,644,750  186,644,750
Charlie Teo Chay Lee     1,000,000    1,250,000    1,250,000 -           -          -
Richard Leow Lian Soon     1,000,000    1,250,000    1,250,000 30,000        37,500 37,500
Michael Kan Yuet Yun       100,000      125,000      125,000 -           -          -
Ong Kian Min       100,000      125,000      125,000 -           -          -

At At At Exercise Expiry
1.1.2002 31.12.2002 21.1.2003 price date

$
OSIM International Ltd
Options to subscribe for ordinary shares of $0.05 each

Charlie Teo Chay Lee       110,000      137,500        137,500 0.320 14.1.2011
-      137,500        137,500 0.424 14.1.2012

Richard Leow Lian Soon       110,000      137,500        137,500 0.320 14.1.2011
-      137,500        137,500 0.424 14.1.2012

Michael Kan Yuet Yun        25,000       31,250         31,250 0.320 14.1.2006
-       31,250         31,250 0.424 14.1.2007

Ong Kian Min        25,000       31,250         31,250 0.320 14.1.2006
-       31,250         31,250 0.424 14.1.2007

By vitue of section 7 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50, both Dr Ron Sim Chye Hock and Teo Sway Heong are deemed to be interested in the shares
held by the Company in its subsidiaries.

Except as disclosed above, no other director has an interest in any shares or debentures of the Company or related corporations either at the
beginning or end of the financial year or on 21 January 2003.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Cont’d)



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

88

Dividends

Dividends paid or proposed since the end of the previous financial year were as follows:
$’000

A final dividend of 0.45 cents per share, less tax at 22%, paid in respect of previous financial year as shown in the directors’
  report for that year 809

A final dividend of 0.45 cents per share, less tax at 22%, paid in respect of previous financial year for additional shares
  issued subsequent to year end arising from the exercise of OSIM Share Option Scheme prior to the book closure date 3

An interim dividend of 0.45 cents per share, less tax at 22%, paid in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2002 1,037

Total 1,849

A final dividend of 0.90 cents per share, less tax at 22%, in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2002 has
  been proposed by the directors and subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting of the Company 2,074

Bad and doubtful debts

Before the profit and loss account and balance sheet of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable steps to ascertain that proper
action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of provision for doubtful debts, and have satisfied themselves that
all known bad debts have been written off and that adequate provision had been made for doubtful debts.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render any amount of bad debts written off or the amount
of provision for doubtful debts in the consolidated financial statements inadequate to any substantial extent.

Current assets

Before the profit and loss account and balance sheet of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable steps to ascertain that any
current assets which were unlikely to realise their book values in the ordinary course of business have been written down to their estimated
realisable values or adequate provision had been made for the diminution in value of such current assets.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render the values attributed to current assets in the
consolidated financial statements misleading.

Charges on assets and contingent liabilities

Since the end of the financial year, and up to the date of this report, no charge on the assets of the Company or its subsidiaries has arisen which
secures the liabilities of any other person and no contingent liability has arisen.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Cont’d)
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Ability to meet obligations

No contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the
financial year which, in the opinion of the directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Company or of the Group to meet their
obligations as and when they fall due.

Other circumstances affecting the financial statements

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or in the consolidated financial
statements which would render any amount stated in the financial statements of the Company and consolidated financial statements misleading.

Unusual items

In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Company and of the Group during the financial year have not been substantially
affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

Unusual items after the financial year

In the opinion of the directors, no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between the end of the
financial year and the date of this report which would affect substantially the results of the operations of the Company and of the Group for the
financial year in which this report is made.

Directors’ contractual benefits

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director of the Company has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than a benefit
or any fixed salary of a full-time employee of the Company included in the aggregate amount of emoluments shown in the financial statements, or
any emoluments received from related corporations or share options granted pursuant to the OSIM Share Option Scheme) by reason of a contract
made by the Company or a related corporation with the director, or with a firm of which the director is a member, or with a company in which the
director has a substantial financial interest, except for related party transactions as shown in the financial statements.

Share options

The OSIM Share Option Scheme is administered by the Remuneration Committee comprising the following members:

Ong Kian Min (Chairman)
Michael Kan Yuet Yun
Khor Peng Soon
Dr Ron Sim Chye Hock
Charlie Teo Chay Lee

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Cont’d)
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Share options (cont’d)

Only confirmed full-time employees as well as directors of the Company (other than Dr Ron Sim Chye Hock and Teo Sway Heong) who are not
controlling shareholders and their associates are eligible to receive options granted under the OSIM Share Option Scheme.

The aggregate number of ordinary shares subject to outstanding options granted under the OSIM Share Option Scheme will not at any time
exceed 15% of the issued share capital of the Company.  The exercise price of the options shall be determined by the Committee and fixed at :

(i) a price (the “Market Price”) equal to the average of the last dealt prices of the Company’s share, as determined by reference to the
Financial News or other publication published by the SGX-ST for the 3 consecutive trading days immediately preceding the date of grant,
rounded up to the nearest whole cent in the event of fractional prices; or

(ii) a price which is set at a discount to the Market Price, provided that :

(a) the maximum discount shall not exceed 20% of the Market Price (or such other percentage or amount as may be determined by
the Committee and permitted by the SGX-ST); and

(b) the shareholders of the Company in general meeting shall have authorised the making of offers and grants of options under the
OSIM Share Option Scheme at a discount not exceeding the maximum discount as aforesaid.

Where the exercise price as determined above is less than the par value of the share, the exercise price shall be the par value.

The exercise period of the option with exercise price at Market Price commences on the first anniversary of the date of grant while the exercise
period for options with exercise price at a discount to the Market Price commences on the second anniversary of the date of grant.  Options
granted to executive directors and employees (other than employees of associated companies) expire on the tenth anniversary of the date of grant
while options granted to non-executive directors and employees of associated companies expire on the fifth anniversary of the date of grant.

Details of the options to subscribe for ordinary shares of $0.05 each of the Company granted to directors and employees (other than employees
of associated companies) of the Group pursuant to the Scheme are as follows :-

 No. of shares under option
Total not

exercised as at
Exercise Granted during Total Total Total 31 December Exercise
period the year granted exercised lapsed 2002 price *

$
Directors of the Company

Charlie Teo Chay Lee 15.1.2002 - 14.1.2011  -        137,500  -  -      137,500 0.320
15.1.2003 - 14.1.2012      137,500        137,500  -  -      137,500 0.424

Richard Leow Lian Soon 15.1.2002 - 14.1.2011  -        137,500  -  -      137,500 0.320
15.1.2003 - 14.1.2012      137,500        137,500  -  -      137,500 0.424

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Cont’d)
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Share options (cont’d)

No. of shares under option
Total not
exercised

as at
Exercise Granted during Total Total Total 31 December Exercise
period the year granted exercised lapsed 2002 price *

$

Directors of the Company

Michael Kan Yuet Yun 15.1.2002 - 14.1.2006 -         31,250 - -       31,250 0.320
15.1.2003 - 14.1.2007       31,250         31,250 - -       31,250 0.424

Ong Kian Min 15.1.2002 - 14.1.2006  -         31,250 - -       31,250 0.320
15.1.2003 - 14.1.2007       31,250         31,250 - -       31,250 0.424

Employees 15.1.2002 - 14.1.2011 -      1,445,250    999,500       -      445,750    0.320
15.1.2002 - 14.1.2006 - 30,000 30,000 - - -
30.8.2002 - 29.8.2011 -        337,500       75,000        43,750      218,750 0.328
15.1.2003 - 14.1.2007 37,500 37,500 - - 37,500 0.424
15.1.2003 - 14.1.2012    1,968,750      1,968,750      -       206,250    1,762,500 0.424
15.9.2003 - 14.9.2012      750,000        750,000 -        30,000      720,000 0.910

Total    3,859,500

* Payable in full on application

Subsequent to the year end, the following options were granted to directors and employees of the Group (other than employees of associated
companies) under the OSIM Share Option Scheme :

No. of shares granted
Date of grant Expiry date under options Exercise price

$

25.1.2003 24.1.2008 50,000 0.795
25.1.2003 24.1.2013 2,225,000 0.795

No employee has received 5% or more of the total options available under the OSIM Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Cont’d)
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Audit committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors, one of whom is also the Chairman of the Committee.  The members
of the Committee  are :-

Michael Kan Yuet Yun (Chairman)
Ong Kian Min (Non-executive Director)
Khor Peng Soon (Non-executive Director)

The Committee performs the functions set out in the Companies Act.  In performing those functions, the Committee reviewed the overall plan and
scope of the external audit and the assistance given by the Company’s officers to the auditors.  The Committee met with the external auditors to
discuss the results of their audit and their evaluation of the systems of internal accounting controls.  The Committee also reviewed the financial
statements of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2002, as well as the external
auditors’ report thereon.

In addition, the Audit Committee reviewed interested person transactions for the financial year ended 31 December 2002 conducted pursuant to
the shareholders’ mandate obtained in accordance with Chapter 9 of the SGX-ST Listing Manual to satisfy itself that the transactions are on
normal commercial terms.

The Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors that Ernst & Young be nominated for re-appointment as auditors at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Cont’d)
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Auditors

Ernst & Young have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Dr Ron Sim Chye Hock
Director

Charlie Teo Chay Lee
Director

Singapore
6 February 2003

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Cont’d)
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO SECTION 201(15)

We, Dr Ron Sim Chye Hock and Charlie Teo Chay Lee, being two of the directors of OSIM International Ltd, do hereby state that, in the opinion of
the directors,

(i) the accompanying balance sheets, profit and loss accounts, statements of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows statement
together with notes thereto, set out on pages 96 to 141, are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2002, and of the results and changes in equity of the Company and of the Group and cash
flows of the Group for the year then ended, and

(ii) at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall
due.

The Board of Directors authorised these financial statements for issue on 6 February 2003.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Dr Ron Sim Chye Hock
Director

Charlie Teo Chay Lee
Director

Singapore
6 February 2003
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
OSIM INTERNATIONAL LTD

We have audited the financial statements of OSIM International Ltd (“the Company”) set out on pages 96 to 141.  The financial statements
comprise the balance sheets of the Company and of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) as at 31 December 2002 and the profit and
loss accounts and the statements of changes in equity of the Company and of the Group and statement of cash flows of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2002, and notes thereto.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s directors.  Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  The financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2001
were audited by other auditors whose report dated 15 March 2002 expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing.  Those Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion,

(a) the financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act (“Act”) and Singapore
Statements of Accounting Standard and so as to give a true and fair view of:

(i) the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2002 and of the results and changes in equity of the
Company and of the Group and cash flows of the Group for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) the other matters required by section 201 of the Act to be dealt with in the financial statements and consolidated financial statements;

(b) the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have been properly kept in accordance with the
provisions of the Act.

We have considered the financial statements and auditors’ reports of all subsidiaries of which we have not acted as auditors, being financial
statements included in the consolidated financial statements.  The names of these subsidiaries are stated in Note 9 to the financial statements.

We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the financial statements of the Company are in
form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and we have received
satisfactory information and explanations as required by us for those purposes.

The auditors’ reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries were not subject to any qualification and in respect of a subsidiary incorporated
in Singapore did not include any comment made under section 207(3) of the Åct.

ERNST & YOUNG
Certified Public Accountants

Singapore
6 February 2003
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Note Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

(Note 41) (Note 41)
Share capital and reserves
Share capital 3 14,769 11,529 14,769 11,529
Share premium 4 23,011 21,449 23,011 21,449
Accumulated profits 5 36,513 21,265 31,274 24,787
Enterprise expansion fund 6 545 497 - -
Capital reserve 7 236 236 - -
Translation reserve 71 1,049 - -

75,145 56,025 69,054 57,765
Minority interests 1,386 1,411 - -

76,531 57,436 69,054 57,765

Fixed assets 8 61,923 65,016 51,959 57,832
Subsidiaries 9 - - 19,782 15,396
Associated companies 10 4,369 2,503 1,078 920
Goodwill arising on consolidation 11 2,822 - - -
Other investments 12 123 8,636 123 8,636

Current assets
Stocks 13 39,519 22,868 18,450 7,711
Trade debtors 14 16,487 14,401 4,912 5,014
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments 15 8,040 5,988 2,527 1,925
Due from subsidiaries (trade) - - 31,766 19,804
Due from subsidiaries (non-trade) 16 - - 187 726
Due from affiliated companies (trade) 17 14,480 12,359 5,645 4,793
Due from affiliated companies (non-trade) 16 - 42 - 42
Due from associated companies (trade) 128 - 128 -
Due from associated companies (non-trade) 16 69 472 69 472
Short term investments 18 5,430 - 5,430 -
Fixed deposits 19 105 190 - -
Cash and bank balances 15,429 11,221 4,358 5,823

99,687 67,541 73,472 46,310

BALANCE SHEETS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2002
(Amounts in Singapore dollars)
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Note  Group  Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

(Note 41) (Note 41)

Trade creditors 4,086 4,117 3,657 3,664
Other creditors and accruals 20 17,904 18,502 7,294 9,627
Provision for warranty 21 1,070 827 719 489
Due to subsidiaries (trade) - - 191 5
Due to affiliated companies (trade) 6 75 36 12
Due to affiliated companies (non-trade) 16 77 - - -
Due to associated companies (trade) 1,484 753 960 498
Short-term bank loans 22 5,600 6,220 4,000 4,000
Provision for income tax 3,144 4,700 2,697 2,927
Bank loans - current portion 23 1,893 1,427 1,860 1,395
Lease obligations - current portion 24 300 166 154 133
Bills payable to banks (secured) - 17,295 - 17,295
Bills payable to banks (unsecured) 33,108 2,025 33,108 2,025

68,672 56,107 54,676 42,070

Net current assets 31,015 11,434 18,796 4,240

Non-current liabilities
Bank loans - non-current portion 23 22,198 28,857 21,844 28,446
Lease obligations - non-current portion 24 917 522 655 475
Provision for pension benefits 25 345 393 - -
Deferred tax 32 261 381 185 338

76,531 57,436 69,054 57,765

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 104 to 141 form an integral part of the financial statements.

BALANCE SHEETS (Cont’d)
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Note Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

(Note 41) (Note 41)

Turnover 26 239,162 167,727 143,802 97,669
Other operating income 27 2,248 2,721 7,540 4,507
Changes in inventories of finished goods 16,652 2,765 10,738 (126)
Finished goods purchased (105,043) (66,025) (102,580) (62,631)
Personnel expenses 28 (32,971) (24,523) (13,991) (10,377)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses (7,862) (4,358) (3,862) (1,873)
Other operating expenses (89,638) (61,626) (30,730) (18,488)

Profit from operations 30 22,548 16,681 10,917 8,681
Financial expenses 31 (1,961) (1,337) (1,723) (1,175)
Financial income 31 110 360 87 338

20,697 15,704 9,281 7,844
Share of profits of associated companies 1,794 528 - -

Profit before tax 22,491 16,232 9,281 7,844
Tax 32 (4,185) (2,873) (945) (845)

Profit after tax 18,306 13,359 8,336 6,999
Minority interests (1,161) 36 - -

Profit attributable to Members of the Company 17,145 13,395 8,336 6,999

Additional notes:

Operating profit before income tax, minority interests, interest
on borrowings, depreciation and amortisation, impairment
in value of fixed assets and foreign exchange gain/(loss) 37,251 19,742 20,228 10,267
Operating profit margin 15.6% 11.8% 14.1% 10.5%
Net profit margin 7.2% 8.0% 5.8% 7.2%
Return on equity 22.8% 23.9% 12.1% 12.1%

Earnings per share (cents)
Basic 33 5.9 4.6
Diluted 33 5.8 4.6

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002
(Amounts in Singapore dollars)
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Enterprise
Share Accumulated expansion Captial Translation

Group Note Share capital premium profits fund reserve reserve Total
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Balance as at 1.1.2001 11,529 21,449 9,538 453 179 444 43,592
Net profit for the year - - 13,395 - - - 13,395
Dividends 34 - - (1,567) - - - (1,567)
Appropriation to enterprise
  expansion fund - - (44) 44 - - -
Appropriation to capital reserve - - (57) - 57 - -
Translation adjustment - - - - - 605 605

Balance as at 31.12.2001 11,529 21,449 21,265 497 236 1,049 56,025

Issue of shares 348 - - - - - 348
Premium arising from issue
  of shares - 4,454 - - - - 4,454
Net profit for the year - - 17,145 - - - 17,145
Bonus issue of shares via
  capitalisation of share premium 2,892 (2,892) - - - - -
Dividends 34 - - (1,849) - - - (1,849)
Appropriation to enterprise
  expansion fund - - (48) 48 - - -
Translation adjustment - - - - - (978) (978)

Balance as at 31.12.2002 14,769 23,011 36,513 545 236 71 75,145

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 104 to 141 form an integral part of the financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002
(Amounts in Singapore dollars)
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Share Accumulated
Company Note Share capital premium profits Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Balance as at 1.1.2001 11,529 21,449 19,355 52,333
Net profit for the year - - 6,999 6,999
Dividends 34 - - (1,567) (1,567)

Balance as at 31.12.2001 11,529 21,449 24,787 57,765

Issue of shares 348 - - 348
Premium arising from issue of shares - 4,454 - 4,454
Net profit for the year - - 8,336 8,336
Bonus issue of shares via capitalisation of share premium 2,892 (2,892) - -
Dividends 34 - - (1,849) (1,849)

Balance as at 31.12.2002 14,769 23,011 31,274 69,054

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Cont’d)
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2002 2001
$’000 $’000

(Note 41)
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax and minority interest 22,491 16,232

Adjustments for:
Share of profits of associated companies (1,794) (528)
Depreciation of fixed assets 7,308 4,358
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 503 160
Write down in value of club memberships - 28
Gain on sale of other investments (17) (55)
Amortisation of goodwill arising on consolidation 554 -
Diminution in value of short term investments 1,562 -
Impairment in value of fixed assets 4,684 -
Interest income (110) (360)
Interest expense 1,961 1,337

Operating profit before working capital changes 37,142 21,172
Stocks (16,651) (2,765)
Trade debtors (2,086) (2,535)
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments (2,052) (1,773)
Due from affiliated companies (trade) (2,121) (2,881)
Due from affiliated companies (non-trade) 42 -
Due from associated companies (trade) (128) -
Due from associated companies (non-trade) 403 (472)
Trade creditors (31) (2,221)
Other creditors and accruals (598) 7,125
Due to affiliated companies (trade) (69) 75
Due to affiliated companies (non-trade) 77 (46)
Due to associated companies (trade) 731 -
Provision for pension benefits (48) 54
Provision for warranty 243 31
Bills payable to the banks 13,788 3,020

Cash generated from operations 28,642 18,784
Income tax payments (5,717) (3,267)
Interest paid (1,961) (1,337)

Net cash from operating activities 20,964 14,180

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002
(Amounts in Singapore dollars)

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 104 to 141 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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2002 2001
$’000 $’000

(Note 41)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets (Note A) (8,964) (18,572)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 84 8
Dividends received from an associated company 75 368
Interest received 110 360
Loan to an associated company (158) -
Purchase of share in associated companies - (164)
Purchase of short term investments (2,021) (8,859)
Proceeds from sale of short term investments 3,559 401

Net cash used in investing activities (7,315) (26,458)

Cash flows from financing activities
Receipts from new bank loans 939 5,179
Repayment of bank loans (7,753) (1,252)
Repayment of lease obligations (315) (172)
Payment of dividends (1,849) (1,567)
Issue of shares (Note B) 414 -

Net cash (used in) generated from financing activities (8,564) 2,188

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,085 (10,090)
Net effect of exchange rates changes (962) 194
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 11,411 21,307

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note C) 15,534 11,411

Note A : Fixed assets

During the financial year, the Group acquired fixed assets with an aggregate cost of $9,807,000 (2001 : $44,298,000) of which $843,000 and nil
(2001 : $505,000 and $25,221,000) were acquired by means of lease obligations and bank loans respectively.  Cash payments of $8,964,000
(2001 : $18,572,000) were made to purchase fixed assets.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)
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Note B : Issue of shares

During the financial year, the Group issued 64,800,000 ordinary shares of $0.05 each. 749,000, 280,500 and 75,000 ordinary shares of $0.05 each
were issued for cash at $0.400, $0.320 and $0.328 per share respectively upon the exercise of options under the OSIM Share Option Scheme.
This resulted in a cash inflow of $414,000. The remaining of the shares issued were non-cash transactions.

Note C : Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated statement of cash flows comprise the following balance sheet amounts :

2002 2001
$’000 $’000

Cash and bank balances 15,429 11,221
Fixed deposits 105 190

Cash and cash equivalents 15,534 11,411

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 104 to 141 form an integral part of the financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)
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1. Corporation information

The financial statements of OSIM International Ltd for the year ended 31 December 2002 were authorised for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the directors on 6 February 2003.  The Company, incorporated in Singapore, is a public limited company listed on the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

The registered office of OSIM International Ltd is located at 65, Ubi Avenue 1, OSIM Headquarters, Singapore 408939.

The principal activities of the Company are those of marketing, distributing and franchising of healthy lifestyle products.  The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are as shown in Note 9 to the financial statements.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

The total number of employees in the Company and the Group at the end of the financial year was 348 and 1,115 (2001: 257 and 845)
respectively.

2. Significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company and of the Group, which are expressed in Singapore dollars, have been prepared under
the historical cost convention in accordance with Singapore Statements of Accounting Standard (“SAS”) and applicable provisions
of the Singapore Companies Act.

(b) Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.  The results of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the financial year are included in or excluded from the consolidated financial statements with
effect from the respective dates of acquisition or disposal.  All intercompany balances and transactions, and any unrealised profit
or loss on intercompany transactions are eliminated on consolidation.

Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method. The financial
statements of foreign associates are translated into Singapore dollars at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Any
unrealised gain arising from transactions with associates is eliminated to the extent of the portion attributable to the Group.

Goodwill represents the excess of cost of acquisition over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and is recognised
as an asset in the balance sheet. Goodwill is amortised on a systematic basis over its useful life of 3 years during which future
economic benefits are expected to flow to the enterprise.

(c) Translation of foreign currency financial statements

Assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiaries are translated into Singapore dollars at the exchange rates ruling at balance sheet
date. The results of foreign subsidiaries are translated into Singapore dollars at the average exchange rates applicable for the financial
year. Foreign currency translation adjustments arising on consolidation are accumulated in the separate component of equity.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2002
(Amounts in Singapore dollars unless otherwise stated)
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2. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(d) Subsidiaries, associated companies and related parties

A subsidiary is defined as a company, in which the Group has a long-term interest of more than 50% of the equity or in whose
financial and operating policy decisions the Group controls.

Shares in subsidiary company are stated in the Company’s balance sheet at cost and provision is made for permanent impairment
in values.

An associated company is defined as a company, not being a subsidiary in which the Group has an interest of not less than 20%
of the equity and in whose financial and operating policy decisions the Group exercises significant influence.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the
other party in making financial and operating decisions.

(e) Affiliated company

An affiliated company is a company, not being a subsidiary or an associated company, in which one or more of the directors or
shareholders of the Company have a significant equity interest or exercise significant influence.

(f) Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less impairment and accumulated depreciation.  The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.  Expenditure for additions,
improvements and renewals are capitalised and expenditure for maintenance and repairs are charged to the profit and loss
account.  When assets are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the financial statements and
any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is included in the profit and loss account.

(g) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on all fixed assets, other than freehold land, at the following rates calculated to write off the cost of
each asset on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life:

Freehold buildings 2% - 3%
Leasehold land and buildings 1.42% - 3%
Computers 18% - 100%
Motor vehicles 18% - 40%
Shop renovations 331/3%
Furniture and fittings 10% - 331/3%
Office equipment 10% - 20%

Fully depreciated fixed assets are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer in use and no further charge for
depreciation is made in respect of these assets.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
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2. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(h) Leases

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the lease
item, are capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease term and disclosed as
leased fixed assets.  Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of liability.  Finance charges are charged directly against income.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased assets are classified
as operating leases.  Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

(i) Other investments

Quoted and unquoted investments held for the long term are stated at cost.  Provision is made for any decline in value that is other
than temporary. Investments held as current assets are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value on portfolio basis.

(j) Impairment of assets

Fixed assets and long term investments are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable.  Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, an impairment loss is recognised in income for items of fixed assets and long term investments carried at cost.  The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and value in use.  The net selling price is the amount obtainable
from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction.  Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected
to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.  Recoverable amounts are estimated
for individual assets or, if it is not possible, for the cash-generating unit.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. A reversal of an impairment
loss in respect of land and buildings or investment property carried at revalued amount is recognised in the same way as a
revaluation increase. All other reversals of impairment are recognised in the profit and loss account.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

107

2. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(k) Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost (determined on a weighted average basis) and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Provision is made for deteriorated, damaged, obsolete and slow-moving stocks.

(l) Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables, which generally have 30 - 90 day terms, are recognised and carried at original invoiced amount less an
allowance for any uncollectible amounts.  An estimate for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount is no longer
probable. Bad debts are written off when identified.

Receivables from related parties are recognised and carried at cost less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts.

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in values.

Cash on hand and in banks are carried at cost.

(n) Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable which are normally settled on 30-90 day terms, are carried at cost which is the fair
value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received.  Payables to related parties are carried at cost.

(o) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The costs incurred to provide the repair services are charged to the provision for warranty account when incurred.

The costs of the warranty obligation under which the Group agrees to remedy defects in its products are accrued at the time the
related sales are recognised.  Provision for warranty is accrued based on the estimated costs of fulfilling the total obligation,
including handling and transportation costs.  The costs are estimated by management based on historical experience.  The
assumptions used to estimate warranty accruals are reviewed periodically in light of actual experience.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
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2. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(p) Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

As required by law, the Group makes contribution to the state pension scheme. These contributions are recognised as compensation
expense in the same period as the employment that gives rise to the contribution.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of providing defined benefit plan is determined using actuarial valuation method.  Actuarial gains and losses are recognised
as income or expense when the cumulative unrecognised actuarial gains or losses for each plan exceed 10% of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets.  These gains or losses are recognised over the expected average remaining
working lives of the employees participating in the plans.

Equity compensation benefits

The Company has an employee share option scheme whereby employees are granted non-transferable options to purchase the
Company’s shares.  There are no charges to earnings upon the grant or exercise of these options. When the options are exercised,
equity is increased by the amount of the proceeds received.

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.  An accrual is made for estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of service rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

(q) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

(r) Revenue recognition

Sales are recognised net of goods and services tax and discounts when goods have been delivered and accepted by the customer.

Franchise fees are recognised as revenue as the services are provided.

Royalty income is recognised as revenue at the time of sale to customers.

Interest income from bank deposits is accrued on a time-apportioned basis.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive the payment is established.

Group turnover excludes intercompany transactions and turnover of associated companies.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
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2. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(s) Income taxes

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax
losses of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences (unless the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill
amortisation or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss).

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utilised (unless the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss).

(t) Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are converted into Singapore dollars at rates closely approximating those ruling at the transaction
dates.  Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities outstanding at the balance sheet date are converted into Singapore
dollars at the rates of exchange approximating those ruling at that date.  All exchange difference arising on conversion are
included in the profit and loss account.

(u) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities carried on the balance sheet include cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities,
trade and other accounts receivable and payable, loans, borrowings and investments.  The accounting policies on recognition
and measurement of these items are disclosed in the respective accounting policies found in this Note.

(v) Segments

For management purposes, the Group is organised on a world-wide basis into two major operating businesses.  The divisions are
the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information.

Segment revenue, expenses and results include transfers between business segments and between geographical segments.
Such transfers are accounted for on an arm’s length basis.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
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2. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(w) Government grants

Grants and subsidies from government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant/subsidy
will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant or subsidy relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them on a systematic basis to the costs which it is intended to compensate.

(x) Revision to accounting standard

During the financial period, the Group adopted Statement of Accounting Standard (“SAS”) 12 (2001) - Income Taxes, which
became effective for financial statements covering periods beginning on or after 1 April 2001.

Under SAS 12 (2001), deferred tax is now recognised for all taxable temporary differences.  Previously, deferred tax was provided on
account of timing differences only to the extent that a tax liability or asset was expected to materialise in the foreseeable future. Arising
from the adoption of SAS 12 (2001), the Group commenced to recognise deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences,
when it is probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
The change in accounting policy has no material impact to the financial results of the Group and Company for the prior years and
current financial year.

3. Share capital
Group and Company
2002 2001
$’000 $’000

Authorised :
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of $0.05 each 50,000 50,000

Issued and fully paid :
At beginning of year, 230,584,000 ordinary shares of $0.05 each 11,529 11,529

Issued during the year :
57,833,250 ordinary shares of $0.05 each at par by issuing of bonus shares out of share premium account 2,892 -
749,000 ordinary shares of $0.05 each for cash at $0.40 per share upon the exercise of the options under
  the OSIM Share Option Scheme 37 -
280,500 ordinary shares of $0.05 each for cash at $0.32 per share upon the exercise of the options under
  the OSIM Share Option Scheme 14 -
75,000 ordinary shares of $0.05 each for cash at $0.328 per share upon the exercise of the options under
  the OSIM Share Option Scheme 4 -
5,849,000 ordinary shares of $0.05 each at $0.75 per share for acquisition of additional shares in
  subsidiaries 293 -

At end of year, 295,370,750 (2001 : 230,584,000) ordinary shares of $0.05 each 14,769 11,529

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
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3. Share capital (cont’d)

Under the OSIM Share Option Scheme, options granted to executive directors and employees (other than employees of associated
companies) expire on the tenth anniversary of the date of grant while options granted to non-executive directors and employees of
associated companies expire on the fifth anniversary of the date of grant.  The exercise period of the option with exercise price at Market
Price commences on the first anniversary of the date of grant while the exercise period for options with exercise price at a discount to the
Market Price commences on the second anniversary of the date of grant.

2002 2001

Number of ordinary share of $0.05 each under option outstanding

At beginning of year 1,870,000 -
Adjustment to share options arising from the bonus issue 749,000 -
Granted 2,625,000 1,995,000
Lapsed (280,000) (125,000)
Exercised  (1,104,500) -

At end of year 3,859,500 1,870,000

Terms of the share options outstanding at end of year:

Expiry date Exercise price Number of options
2002 2001 2002 2001

$ $

14.1.2006 0.320 0.400 62,500 50,000
14.1.2011 0.320 0.400 720,750 1,550,000
29.8.2011 0.328 0.410 218,750 270,000
14.1.2007 0.424 - 100,000 -
14.1.2012 0.424 - 2,037,500 -
14.1.2012 0.910 - 720,000 -

Total 3,859,500 1,870,000

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
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4. Share premium

Movements in share premium are as follows: Group and Company
2002 2001
$’000 $’000

At beginning of year 21,449 21,449
Bonus issue of 57,833,250 ordinary shares of $0.05 each at par issued out of share premium account (2,892) -
Share premium arising from issue of 749,000 ordinary shares of $0.05 each at $0.40 per share 263 -
Share premium arising from issue of 280,500 ordinary shares of $0.05 each at $0.32 per share 76 -
Share premium arising from issue of 75,000 ordinary shares of $0.05 each at $0.328 per share 21 -
Share premium arising from issue of 5,849,000 ordinary shares of $0.05 each at $0.75 per share for
  acquisition of additional shares in subsidiaries 4,094 -

At end of year 23,011 21,449

The share premium account may be applied only for the purposes specified in the Companies Act.  The balance is not available for
distribution of dividends except in the form of shares.

5. Accumulated profits

Retained by:
Group

2002 2001
$ $

The Company 31,274 24,787
Subsidiaries 14,691 7,355
Associated companies 3,024 1,599
Goodwill arising from acquisition of subsidiaries in 2000 taken directly to shareholders’ equity (12,476) (12,476)

36,513 21,265

6. Enterprise expansion fund

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), OSIM International Trading (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd (the “subsidiary”) appropriated tax refunds from accumulated profits to enterprise expansion fund. The enterprise expansion fund
may be used to increase the registered capital of the subsidiary, subject to approval from the PRC authorities. The enterprise expansion
fund is not available for dividend distribution to the shareholders.
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7. Capital reserve

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), OSIM International Trading (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd (the “subsidiary”) is required to set up a capital reserve by way of appropriations from its statutory net profit. The subsidiary is
required to allocate at least 10% of its net profit to the capital reserve until the balance of the capital reserve reaches 50% of its registered
capital. The capital reserve may be used to offset accumulated losses or increase the registered capital of the subsidiary, subject to
approval from the PRC authorities. The capital reserve is not available for dividend distribution to the shareholders.

8. Fixed assets

Group Freehold Leasehold Furniture
Land and  Land and Motor Shop and Office
Buildings Buildings Computers Vehicles Renovations Fittings Equipment Total

$’000  $’000  $’000  $’000  $’000  $’000  $’000 $’000

Cost
As at 1.1.2002 11,304 45,228 1,885 1,686 11,015 3,127 1,058 75,303
Reclassification - - 51 - - (177) 126 -
Additions - - 1,325 1,278 5,521 1,356 327 9,807
Disposals - - - (88) (1,065) (217) (5) (1,375)
Impairment (3,608) (1,076) - - - - - (4,684)
Translation adjustment (74) (11) (44) (40) (495) (62) (36) (762)

As at 31.12.2002 7,622 44,141 3,217 2,836 14,976 4,027 1,470 78,289

Accumulated depreciation
As at 1.1.2002 780 946 1,268 729 5,475 899 190 10,287
Reclassification - - (3) - - 5 (2) -
Charge for the year 151 1,841 629 435 3,427 660 165 7,308
Disposals - - - (52) (541) (195) - (788)
Translation adjustment (8) - (25) (29) (321) (43) (15) (441)

As at 31.12.2002 923 2,787 1,869 1,083 8,040 1,326 338 16,366

Charge for 2001 182 207 677 228 2,615 380 69 4,358

Net book value
As at 31.12.2002 6,699 41,354 1,348 1,753 6,936 2,701 1,132 61,923

As at 31.12.2001 10,524 44,282 617 957 5,540 2,228 868 65,016
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8. Fixed assets (cont’d)

Company Freehold Leasehold Furniture
Land and  Land and Motor Shop and Office
Buildings Buildings Computers Vehicles Renovations Fittings Equipment Total

$’000  $’000  $’000  $’000  $’000  $’000  $’000  $’000
Cost
As at 1.1.2002  9,816        45,052     1,178   1,030      2,991      1,875       715 62,657
Additions  -           -       305     572      1,098        329       105 2,409
Disposals -           -       -      (40)        (160) -       - (200)
Impairment (3,287)         (1,076)       -     - - - -  (4,363)

As at 31.12.2002    6,529        43,976     1,483   1,562      3,929      2,204       820 60,503

Accumulated depreciation
As at 1.1.2002 653           942     1,006     342      1,531        298        53    4,825
Charge for the year  134         1,838       335     262        864        347        82   3,862
Disposals -           -       -      (41)        (102) -       - (143)

As at 31.12.2002   787         2,780     1,341     563      2,293        645       135  8,544

Charge for 2001 164 204 530 144 701 112 18 1,873

Net book value
As at 31.12.2002    5,742        41,196       142     999      1,636      1,559       685 51,959

As at 31.12.2001    9,163        44,110       172     688      1,460      1,577       662 57,832

As at 31 December 2002, the Group and the Company had motor vehicles and furniture and fittings under finance lease with a net book
value of $1,413,000 (2001: $875,000) and $911,000 (2001: $755,000) respectively.  In addition, the Group and the Company had the
following freehold land and buildings and leasehold buildings which were mortgaged as security for the banking facilities as disclosed in
Notes 22 and 23:

Group Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Net book value
Freehold land and buildings 957 10,524 - 9,163
Leasehold buildings 39,080 44,282 39,080 44,110

The impairment represents the write down of certain land and buildings of the Company and the Group to recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount was determined based on the estimated selling price of these land and buildings valued by an independent professional valuer.
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9. Subsidiaries

(a) These comprise: Company
2002 2001
$’000 $’000

Unquoted equity shares 19,782 15,396

(b) Details of subsidiaries are as follows :
Country of

incorporation and Percentage of
Name Principal activities place of business equity held Cost of investment

2002 2001 2002 2001
% % $’000 $’000

OSIM International Trading Import, trading and People’s Republic 100 100 295 295
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd 

▲
distribution of healthy of China

lifestyle products

OSIM (M) Sdn Bhd 
@

Sale and marketing Malaysia 80 60 5,677 2,500
of healthy lifestyle

products

OSIM (HK) Company Limited 
@

Sale and marketing Hong Kong 100 100 12,070 12,070
of healthy lifestyle

products

OSIM (Taiwan) Co., Ltd Sale and marketing Taiwan 85 70 1,740 531
(formerly known as OSIM of healthy lifestyle
GHC (Taiwan) Co., Ltd) 

@
products

Nutrition Focus (USA) Inc ^ * Dormant British Virgin Island 100 - - -

OSIM Nutriceutical Pte Ltd Dormant Singapore 100 - - -
(formerly known as R.SIM
Holding Pte Ltd) ^

 ∅

19,782 15,396

^ Cost of investment of Nutrition Focus (USA) Inc and OSIM Nutriceutical Pte Ltd is $2 each.
▲

Audited by Shanghai Shenzhou Certified Public Accountants Company Limited, People’s Republic of China.
@

Audited by member firms of Ernst & Young Global.
* Not required to be audited under the laws of its country of incorporation.
∅

Audited by Lee S F & Co., Certified Public Accountants, Singapore.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

116

9. Subsidiaries (cont’d)

The financial year end of OSIM Nutriceutical Pte Ltd is 30 June 2002.

In July 2002, the Company acquired an additional 20% and 15% of the issued and paid up capital of OSIM (M) Sdn Bhd and OSIM
(Taiwan) Co., Ltd respectively. The acquisition of OSIM (M) Sdn Bhd and OSIM (Taiwan) Co., Ltd  was settled via the issue of 4,237,000
ordinary shares and 1,612,000 ordinary shares of $0.05 each at $0.75 per share. In the 6 months to 31 December 2002,  OSIM (M) Sdn
Bhd and OSIM (Taiwan) Co., Ltd contributed an additional net profit of approximately $147,000 and $249,000 respectively to the consolidated
net profit for the year. The acqusition was accounted for using the purchase method of consolidation.

In addition, the Company acquired 2 ordinary shares of $1 each per share for cash, representing 100% shareholdings of OSIM Nutriceutical
Pte Ltd.  Nutrition Focus (USA) Inc was incorporated during the year for 1 ordinary share at US $1 per share. The acquisition was
accounted for using the purchase method of consolidation. These subsidiaries had been dormant since incorporation and has made no
contribution to the Group's net profit for the year.

10. Associated companies

(a) These comprise :
Group Company

2002 2001 2002 2001
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Unquoted equity shares, at cost 772 772 772 772
Add : Share of post-acquisition profits of associated companies 3,737 2,238 - -
Less : Dividends received from associated companies (713) (639) - -

3,796 2,371 772 772
Translation reserve 267 (16) - -
Loan to an associated company 306 148 306 148

4,369 2,503 1,078 920

(b) Loan to associated company is unsecured and interest free.  The loan is not expected to be repaid within the next twelve months from the
balance sheet date.
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10. Associated companies (cont’d)

(c) Details of associated companies are as follows:

Country of incorporation Percentage of Cost of
Name Principal activities and place of business equity held investment

2002 2001 2002 2001
% % $’000 $’000

Daito-OSIM Healthcare Manufacturer and exporter People’s Republic 30 30 346 346
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd of healthy lifestyle products of China

Daito-OSIM Healthcare Manufacturer and exporter People’s Republic 30 30 261 261
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd of healthy lifestyle products of China

Daito-OSIM (Thailand) Manufacturer and exporter Kingdom of Thailand 30 30 102  102
Co., Ltd of healthy lifestyle products

OSIM (Thai) Co., Ltd Sales and marketing of Kingdom of Thailand 49   49 63  63
healthy lifestyle products

772 772

All associated companies are audited by other auditors.

11. Goodwill arising on consolidation
Group

2002 2001
$’000 $’000

Cost
At beginning of year - -
Arising from acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries 3,376 -

At end of year 3,376 -

Accumulated amortisation
At beginning of year - -
Amortisation for the year 554 -

At end of year 554 -

Net book value
At end of year 2,822 -

At beginning of year - -
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12. Other investments

Group and Company
2002 2001
$’000 $’000

Quoted investments
Equity shares - 5,117
Convertible bonds - 1,734
Bonds - 1,662

- 8,513
Club memberships 123 123

Total 123 8,636

Market value of quoted investments
Equity shares - 5,168
Convertible bonds - 1,765
Bonds - 1,713

- 8,646

Details of the bonds are as follows :-

Group and Company
2002 2001

Effective interest rate Maturity date $’000 $’000

Bond A 7.125% 15.5.2011 - 730
Bond B 7.750% 6.9.2011 - 932

- 1,662

The quoted investments are managed by a fund management company.

In 2002, the Company reclassified these investments to current assets as it is the management intention to hold them as short term
investments (Note 18).
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13. Stocks

Group   Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Finished goods at cost 41,596 24,802 20,360 8,829
Goods in transit 711 - - -

42,307 24,802 20,360 8,829
Less : Provision for stock obsolescence (2,788) (1,934) (1,910) (1,118)

39,519 22,868 18,450 7,711

Analysis of provision for stock obsolescence :

At beginning of year 1,934 1,534 1,118 652
Provision for the year 965 466 792 466
Write off against provision (56) (118) - -
Translation adjustment (55) 52 - -

At end of year 2,788 1,934 1,910 1,118
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14. Trade debtors

Group   Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Trade debtors 17,375 14,665 5,783 5,278
Less : Provision for doubtful debts (888) (264) (871) (264)

16,487 14,401 4,912 5,014

Analysis of provision for doubtful debts :

At beginning of year 264 - 264 -
Provision for the year 625 264 607 264
Translation adjustment (1) - - -

At end of year 888 264 871 264

15. Other debtors, deposits and prepayments

Group   Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Deposits 5,050 4,163 1,221 723
Prepayments 778 470 135 149
Advances to employees 9 7 - -
Sundry debtors 431 307 143 12
Income tax recoverable 1,772 1,028 1,028 1,028
Accrued bond interest - 13 - 13

8,040 5,988 2,527 1,925

16. Due from (to) subsidiaries/affiliated companies/associated companies (non-trade)

These amounts are unsecured, interest free and are repayable within the next twelve months from the balance sheet date.
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17. Due from affiliated companies (trade)

Group   Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Due from affiliated companies 14,494 12,373 5,659 4,807
Less : Provision for doubtful debts (14) (14) (14) (14)

14,480 12,359 5,645 4,793

Analysis of provision for doubtful debts :

Group and Company
2002 2001
$’000 $’000

At beginning of year 14 194
Write off against provision - (180)

At end of year 14 14

18. Short term investments

Group and Company
2002 2001
$’000 $’000

Quoted investments at market value
Equity shares 4,377 -
Convertible bonds 1,053 -

5,430 -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

122

18. Short term investments (cont’d)

These investments are managed by a fund management company.

19. Fixed deposits

Fixed deposits amounting to $105,000 (2001 : $190,000) are pledged as collateral for the bank loans of a subsidiary as disclosed in Note
22 and Note 23.

20. Other creditors and accruals

Group   Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Other creditors 7,284 3,559 2,802 2,195
Accrued operating expenses 8,004 7,654 3,056 2,391
Accrued payroll costs 2,578 3,180 1,398 932
Accrued fixed assets creditors 38 4,109 38 4,109

17,904 18,502 7,294 9,627
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

21. Provision for warranty

Group   Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At beginning of year 827 796 489 418
Provision for the year 672 204 394 71
Utilisation during the year (407) (132) (164) -
Translation adjustment (22) (41) - -

At end of year 1,070 827 719 489

The Group provides one-year warranty to its customers on certain of its products, under which faulty products are repaired or replaced.
The amount of the provision for warranty is estimated based on sales volumes and past experience of the level of repairs and return.  The
estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.

The above provision has not been discounted as the effect of discounting is not significant.

22. Short-term bank loans

Group   Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Secured 1,600 1,934 - -
Unsecured 4,000 4,286 4,000 4,000

5,600 6,220 4,000 4,000

The secured portion is secured by fixed deposits amounting to $105,000 (2001 : $190,000) and the freehold land and building of a
subsidiary.  This loan bears interest at the rate of 3.80% to 7.28% (2001: 3.80% to 7.80%) per annum and is repayable within the next
twelve months from the balance sheet date.

The unsecured loans bear interest at the rate of 1.83% to 3.56% (2001: 3.25% to 3.68%) per annum and are repayable within the next
twelve months from the balance sheet date.
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23. Bank loans

Group   Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Bank loan A - 4,620 - 4,620
Bank loan B 387 443 - -
Bank loan C 23,704 25,221 23,704 25,221

24,091 30,284 23,704 29,841
Due within 12 months (1,893) (1,427) (1,860) (1,395)

Due after 12 months 22,198 28,857 21,844 28,446

Bank loan A was repaid in full during the year. Bank loan B, taken up by a subsidiary, is repayable in 132 equal monthly instalments over
a period of 11 years from the date of drawdown.  Bank loan C is repayable in 167 equal monthly instalments of $155,000 each and a final
instalment repayment of $115,000, commencing 12 months from first drawdown date.  Interest on bank loan B is charged at 7.00% (2001
: 7.29%) per annum.  Bank loan C amounting to approximately $13 million is charged interest at cost of funds plus 2% per annum, the
remaining loan balance is charged at 6 months SGD swap offer rate plus 1.75% per annum.

Bank loan B is secured by a subsidiary’s legal mortgage on the freehold land and building and pledge by collateral of fixed deposits
amounting to $105,000 (2001 : $190,000).

Bank loan C is secured by a legal mortgage over leasehold building of the Company and a fire insurance policy covering the building
assigned to the bank.
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24. Lease obligations

Group Company
Payments Interest Principal Payments Interest Principal

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2002

More than 1 year and not later than 5 years     989       158    831   677    108 569
Later than 5 years     102     16     86    102    16 86

 1,091    174   917    779    124 655
Not later than 1 year     353     53    300    184  30 154

 1,444     227       1,217      963          154  809

2001

More than 1 year and not later than 5 years 173 54 119 112 41 71
Later than 5 years 475 72 403 475 71 404

648 126 522 587 112 475
Not later than 1 year 177 11 166 137 4 133

825 137 688 724 116 608

Lease terms range from 1 year to 7 years with options to purchase at the end of the lease term.  Lease terms do not contain restrictions
concerning dividends, additional debt or further leasing.  The average discount rate implicit in the leases ranges from 4.42% to 14.94%
(2001: 4.53% to 15.51%).  The effective interest rates in the leases range from 2.35% to 8.50% (2001 : 4.53% to 15.51%) per annum.
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25. Provision for pension benefits

This relates to the amount of pension cost provided for by a subsidiary. This subsidiary has a retirement plan covering substantially all its
regular employees. Benefits under the plan are based on length of service and estimated base pay at the time of retirement. The subsidiary
made a monthly contribution at certain percentage of the salaries to the pension fund, which is administered by a pension committee and
deposited in its name with the Central Trust of China.

Certain pension information is as follows:

a. Net periodic pension costs are as follows:
Group

2002 2001
$’000 $’000

Service cost 134 80
Interest cost 35 40
Actual return on plan assets (6) -
Net amortisation and deferral 14 15

Net pension costs 177 135

b. Based on the actuarial report which measures the pension assets and liabilities, the reconciliation between the funding status of
pension plan and accrued pension liability was as follows:

Group
2002 2001
$’000 $’000

Benefit obligation
Vested benefit obligation - -
Non-vested benefit obligation 190 128

Accumulated benefit obligation 190 128

Effect of projected future salary increase 726 663

Projected benefit obligation 916 791

Fair value of plan assets (167) (88)

Status of pension plan 749 703

Unrecognised net transitional obligation (283) (315)
Unamortised actuarial gain 5 5

Accrued pension liability 471 393
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

25. Provision for pension benefits (cont’d)

As the deposits for the pension fund at Central Trust of China exceed the accrued amount reported on the actuarial report, the
accrued pension liability as shown above, is greater than the amount on the balance sheet.

c. Actuarial assumptions:
Group

2002 2001
% %

Discount rate used in determining present values  4.50 4.75
Future salary increase rate  2.50 7.25
Expected rate of return of plan assets  4.50 4.75

26. Turnover

Income from sale of goods is recognised upon delivery of goods and acceptance by customers.

27. Other operating income

Group   Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Royalty income 305 173 5,536 3,019
Management fee - - 677 -
Gain on sale of other investments 17 55 17 55
Rental income 298 140 271 97
Dividend income from an associated company - - 376 368
Repair income 342 192 108 109
Exchange gain, net - 1,658 - 624
Franchise fees 36 71 36 71
Spare parts income 411 140 411 140
Others 839 292 108 24

2,248 2,721 7,540 4,507
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28. Personnel expenses

Group   Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Wages, salaries and bonuses 30,056 21,987 12,307 8,563
Pension contributions 2,425 2,022 1,512 1,380
Other personnel expenses 490 514 172 434

32,971 24,523 13,991 10,377

29. Directors’ remuneration

2002 2001

Number of directors of the Company in remuneration bands :

$500,000 and above 1 1
$250,000 to $499,999 2 -
Below $250,000 4 6

7 7
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30. Profit from operations

This is stated after charging the following:

Group   Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Auditors’ remuneration
- payable to the auditors of the Company    43      43 43      43
- payable to other auditors         116      76 -     -

Non-audit fees
- payable to the auditors of the Company      146      22 146      22
- payable to other auditors 157 - 157 -

Amortisation of goodwill arising on consolidation 554 - - -
Bad trade debts written off          48     - 30     -
Provision for doubtful trade debts 625 264 607     264
Depreciation of fixed assets 7,308  4,358 3,862   1,873
Directors’ remuneration

- directors of the Company       2,911   2,509 2,637   2,233
- directors of subsidiaries         404     381 -     -

Fees paid to a firm in which a director is a member          24     1 24     1
Directors’ fees

- directors of the Company        100     100 100     100
Provision for stock obsolescence        965     466 792 466
Stocks written off         193   2,135 92     298
Impairment in value of fixed assets       4,684 - 4,363 -
Diminution in value of short term investments 1,562 - 1,562 -
Provision for warranty costs         672     204 394      71
Provision for pension benefits         177     135 -     -
Write down in value of club memberships        - 28 -      28
Personnel expenses (Note 28)*    32,971  24,523 13,991  10,377
Operating lease expenses    19,111  13,155 5,073   3,459
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 503 160 57 -
Exchange loss (net) 2,047 - 1,000 -

*This includes amount shown as directors’ remuneration.
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31. Financial expenses / income

Group   Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

(a) Financial expenses

Interest expenses
-  banks loans 1,452 742 1,235 588
-  bank overdrafts - 14 - 14
-  lease obligations 53 29 32 21
-  bills payable 456 552 456 552

1,961 1,337 1,723 1,175
(b) Financial income

Interest income
-  fixed deposits - - - -
-  bank balances 32 269 9 248
-  bonds 74 41 74 40
-  money market 4 50 4 50

110 360 87 338

32. Tax

(a) This comprises : Group   Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Current tax
-  current year 5,028 3,534 2,000 1,503
-  (over) / underprovision in respect of prior years (902) 370 (902) 370

Deferred tax
-  current year (236) (82) (153) -

Share of tax of associated companies - current tax 295 79 - -
Income tax recoverable - (1,028) - (1,028)

4,185 2,873 945 845
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32. Tax (cont’d)

(b) Reconciliation between the tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the applicable tax rate is as follows :

Group   Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Accounting profit 22,491 16,232 9,281 7,844

Tax at applicable tax rate of 22.0% (2001 : 24.5%) 4,948 3,977 2,042 1,922

Adjustments :

Permanent differences / expenses not deductible
  for tax purpose 1,676 1,151 1,574 706

Due to difference in corporate tax rate and BHQ
  concessionary tax rate (1,769) (1,125) (1,769) (1,125)

Due to difference in tax rates of subsidiaries to the
  domestic tax rate 262 (551) - -

(Over) / underprovision in respect of prior years (902) 370 (902) 370

Share of tax of associated companies 295 79 - -

Income tax recoverable - (1,028) - (1,028)

Others (325) - - -

Tax expense 4,185 2,873 945 845
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32. Tax (cont’d)

(c) Deferred income tax assets and liabilities

Group   Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Deferred tax liabilities

Tax over book depreciation 502 297 426 254

Other deferred tax liabilities 376 491 376 491

Gross deferred tax liabilities 878 788 802 745

Deferred tax assets

Other deferred tax assets 617 407 617 407

Gross deferred tax assets 617 407 617 407

Net deferred tax liabilities 261 381 185 338
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32. Tax (cont’d)

Group and Company

On 25 January 2002, the Company was awarded the Development and Expansion Incentive (“DEI”) under the Business Headquarters
(“BHQ”) Programme for 6 years with effect from 1 January 1999.  The qualifying income from BHQ activities during the 6-year period will
enjoy a concessionary tax rate, subject to the fulfilment of the criteria as stipulated in Economic Development Board’s offer letter.  In year
2001, the prior years’ total savings from the DEI is estimated to be approximately $1.028 million, subject to the fulfilment of the stipulated
criteria.  The amount has been shown as income tax recoverable. In year 2002, an over provision of current year tax relates mainly to
capital gains from sale of property in prior year which is not subject to tax by the Inland Revenue Authority of Singapore.

OSIM International Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd

As a wholly foreign-owned enterprise registered in the Zone, Pudong New Area, the Company is subject to PRC income tax at the rate of 15%.

OSIM (Taiwan) Co., Ltd

Pursuant to the Income Tax Law (ITL), beginning with 1998, annual distributable net earnings as determined under the ITL that are not
distributed to stockholders in the following year are subject to additional income tax at a rate of 10%. The 25% income tax and additional
10% tax paid by the Company for 1998 and onwards may be used by the individual resident stockholders of the Company as individual
income tax credits. Pursuant to the ITL, the additional 10% income tax paid may be used by the stockholders, other than domestic
corporate shareholders as tax credits when the undistributed earnings are ultimately distributed.

33. Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s profit after tax and minority interests of $17,145,000 (2001:
$13,395,000) by the number of shares as shown below:

Number of shares
2002 2001
’000 ’000

Weighted average number of shares 234,297 230,584
Adjustment for bonus issue 57,833 57,833

Weighted average number of shares used in calculation of basic earnings per share 292,130 288,417
Adjustment for assumed conversion of share options 1,441 180

Weighted average number of shares used in calculation of diluted earnings per share 293,571 288,597
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33. Earnings per share (cont’d)

For the purposes of calculating the diluted earnings pr share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to take
into account the dilutive effect arising from the exercise of all outstanding share options granted to employees where such shares would
be issued at a price lower than the fair value (average share price during the financial year).  The difference between the number of shares
to be issued at the exercise prices under the options and the number of shares that would have been issued at the fair value based on the
assumed proceeds from the issue of these shares are treated as ordinary shares issued for no consideration.  The number of such shares
issued for no consideration is added to the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

34. Dividends

Group and Company
2002 2001
$’000 $’000

A final dividend of 0.45 cents (2001 : 0.60 cents) per share, less tax at
  22.0% (2001: 24.5%) paid in respect of the previous financial year 809 1,045

A final dividend of 0.45 cents (2001 : nil) per share, less tax at 22%
  (2001 : nil) paid in respect of previous financial year arising from the
  exercise of OSIM Share Option Scheme prior to the book closure date 3 -

An interim dividend of 0.45 cents (2001 : 0.30 cents) per share, less tax at 22%
  (2001 : 24.5%) paid in respect of the current financial year 1,037    522

1,849 1,567

A final dividend of 0.90 cents per share (2001 : 0.45 cents) per share,
  less tax at 22.0% (2001 : 24.5%),  in respect of the current year proposed
  by the directors and subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting
  of the Company 2,074    783
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35. Related party information

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, significant transactions with related parties, on
term agreed between the parties were as follows:

  Group
2002 2001
$’000 $’000

Income
Sales to associated companies 314 -
Sales to affiliated companies (Note A) 27,692 16,398
Royalty income received/receivable from associated companies 68 -
Royalty income received/receivable from an affiliated company (Note B) 150 150

Expenses
Purchases from associated companies 12,078 4,941
Purchases from affiliated companies (Note C) 43 -
Rental expense and service fees paid to an affiliated company (Note D) 622 269
Fees paid to a firm of which a director is a member 24 1

Note A : Sales to affiliated companies
PT. OSIM Selaras Indonesia Makmur 2,493 1,752
OSIM (USA), Inc. 5,340 3,018
OSIM (Shanghai) Co., Ltd 6,712 5,182
OSIM (Langfang) Co., Ltd 8,933 5,475
OSIM (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd 4,214 971

27,692 16,398

Note B : Royalty income received/receivable from an affiliated company
PT. OSIM Selaras Indonesia Makmur 150 150

Note C : Purchases from affiliated companies
PT. OSIM Selaras Indonesia Makmur 8 -
OSIM (USA), Inc. 35 -

43 -

Note D : Rental expenses and service fees paid to an affiliated company
ODC Logistics (S) Pte Ltd 622 269
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

36. Commitments

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

The Group and Company have lease commitments with respect to the rental of shop and office premises and office equipment. The lease
commitments only include commitments for basic operating lease payments, and do not include commitments for additional contingent
rental payable, if any, when turnover of the retail outlets exceeds pre-determined levels. Lease terms do not contain restrictions on the
Group’s activities concerning dividends, additional debt or further leasing.

Group   Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Future minimum lease payments

  Within one year 16,477 6,453 5,031   2,444
  After one year but not more than five years 19,609 5,610 5,159 1,668

36,086 12,063 10,190 4,112

37. Options

The Company has been granted options to purchase 100% of OSIM (USA), Inc., 10% of PT. OSIM Selaras Indonesia Makmur, 100% of
OSIM (Langfang) Co., Ltd, OSIM (Beijing) Co., Ltd, OSIM (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd and OSIM (Shanghai) Co., Ltd (all being related parties)
from a director at fair market values to be determined and subject to the laws of the countries of these companies permitting foreign
shareholdings in these companies. In addition, the option for OSIM (USA), Inc. is exercisable in the event that OSIM (USA), Inc. becomes
profitable.

38. Subsequent events

On 25 January 2003, pursuant to the OSIM Share Option Scheme, the Company granted the following options to directors and employees
of the Group (other than employees of associated companies):

Date of grant Expiry date No. of shares granted under option Exercise price
$

25.1.2003 24.1.2008 50,000 0.795
25.1.2003 24.1.2013 2,225,000 0.795
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39. Segment information

Business segments

The Group is organised on a worldwide basis into two main operating divisions, namely retail and distribution.

Retail Distribution Elimination Group
2002 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Revenue

External sales 208,654 30,508 - 239,162
Inter-segment sales - 97,081 (97,081) -

208,654 127,589 (97,081) 239,162

Results

Operating profit 15,916 9,203 (2,571) 22,548
Financial expenses, net (666) (1,185) (1,851)
Share of results of associated companies 1,794
Tax (4,185)
Minority interests (1,161)

Net profit 17,145

Assets

Allocated assets 66,174 90,006 156,180
Investment in associated companies 4,369
Other investment 123
Short term investments 5,430
Goodwill arising on consolidation 2,822

Total assets 168,924

Liabilities

Allocated liabilities 48,982 8,804 57,786
Unallocated corporate liabilities 34,607

Total liabilities 92,393

Capital expenditure 7,825 1,982 9,807

Depreciation of fixed assets 4,466 2,842 7,308

Impairment in value of fixed assets 4,684

Amortisation of goodwill arising on consolidation 554
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39. Segment information (cont’d)

Retail Distribution Elimination Group
2001 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Revenue

External sales 150,748 16,979 - 167,727
Inter-segment sales - 62,427 (62,427) -

150,748 79,406 (62,427) 167,727

Results

Operating profit 10,592 6,699 (610) 16,681
Financial expenses, net (408) (569) (977)
Share of results of associated companies 528
Tax (2,873)
Minority interests 36

Net profit 13,395

Assets

Allocated assets 66,328 66,229 132,557
Investment in associated companies 2,503
Other investments 8,636

Total assets 143,696

Liabilities

Allocated liabilities 20,365 23,226 43,591
Unallocated corporate liabilities 42,669

Total liabilities 86,260

Capital expenditure 16,409 27,889 44,298

Depreciation of fixed assets 3,048 1,310 4,358
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39. Segment information (cont’d)

Geographical segments

Turnover, assets and additions to property, plant and equipment are based on the location of the business operations.

Turnover Assets Capital expenditure
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001

$’ 000 $’ 000 $’ 000 $’ 000 $’ 000 $’ 000

Hong Kong 95,621 74,917 31,516 27,347 3,364 1,894
Singapore 49,056 36,419 95,750 90,696 2,409 40,403
Taiwan 46,738 28,855 18,121 10,649 1,670 862
Malaysia 27,887 15,908 12,574 6,465 2,141 1,128
China 19,860 11,628 10,963 8,539 223 11

Total 239,162 167,727 168,924 143,696 9,807 44,298

40. Financial instruments

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk, market risk and
credit risk.  The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

It is the Group’s policy not to trade in derivative contracts.

Interest rate risk

The Group obtains additional financing through bank borrowings and leasing arrangements.  The Group’s policy is to obtain the most
favourable interest rates available without increasing its foreign currency exposure.

Surplus funds are placed with reputable banks and/or invested in quoted equities and bonds.

Information relating to the Group’s interest rate exposure is also disclosed in the notes on the Group’s borrowings and leasing obligations.
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40. Financial instruments (cont’d)

Liquidity risk

To ensure continuity of funding, the Group’s policy is that at least 50% of its borrowings should mature in more than 5 years.

Short-term funding is obtained from revolving credit and overdraft facilities.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group uses foreign exchange contracts in managing its foreign exchange risk resulting from cash flows from anticipated transactions
and financing arrangements denominated in foreign currencies, primarily the US dollars and Japanese yen.  Transaction risk is calculated
in each foreign currency and includes foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities and firm and probable purchase and sales
commitments.

Market risk

The Group has investments in quoted equity shares and bonds, which are subject to market risks as the market values of these investments
are affected by changes in market prices.  The Group manages its exposure to market risks by maintaining a portfolio of equities with
different risk profiles.  These amounts are managed by a fund management company.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, trade debtors and other debtors represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to financial assets.  No other financial assets carry a significant exposure to credit risk.

As the nature of the Group’s business is in retail, the majority of outstanding trade receivables are due from departmental stores.

Fair values

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents and other current assets

The carrying amount approximates fair value due to the relatively short-term maturity of these instruments.

Short-term borrowings

The carrying amount approximates fair value because of the short period to maturity.
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40. Financial instruments (cont’d)

Fair values (cont’d)

Long-term borrowings

The fair value of the long-term loans is based on the quoted market price for the same or similar issues or on the current rates available for
debt with the same maturity profile.  The fair value of non-current loans, borrowings or other payables with variable interest rates approximates
their carrying amounts.

Quoted and unquoted investments

The fair value of quoted investments is estimated based on quoted market prices for these investments. For unquoted investments, it is
not practicable to determine the fair value because of the lack of quoted market prices and the assumptions used in valuation models to
value these investments cannot be reasonably determined.

Lease obligations

The fair value of lease obligations is determined by discounting the relevant cash flow using current interest rates for similar instruments
at balance sheet date.

As at 31 December 2002, the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities which do not approximate the carrying amount in the
balance sheets of the Group and Company are presented in the following table:

2002 2001
Carrying amount Estimated fair value Carrying amount Estimated fair value

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Group
Long term borrowings 22,198 22,188 28,857 28,839
Lease obligations 1,217 912 688 452

Company
Lease obligations 809 615 608 377

41. Comparatives

Prior year comparative figures were audited by a firm of certified public accountants other than Ernst & Young.
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Gross Floor Unexpired
Description Location Area (sq m) Tenure (years) Term (years)

8-storey industrial building 65 Ubi Avenue 1, OSIM Headquarters 17,682.5 60 54
Singapore 408939

11-storey industrial building 57 Genting Lane, OSIM Industrial Building 2,657 Freehold NA
Singapore 349564

Strata units in commercial building Rochor Canal Road, #01-08 and #01-41 86 99 79
Sim Lim Square, Singapore 188504

Strata units in commercial building 6 Xuanwumenwai Street, Junefield Plaza 186.1 50 42
Tower 1 15th Floor, unit 1526 and 1527
Beijing, PRC

Residential condominium Unit 8C, 1523-2 Dong Fang Road, Pudong 165.40 68 60
New Development Zone, Shanghai, PRC

Strata units in commercial building 25F-2 and B2-B4, No. 508, Section 5, 244.83 Freehold NA
Chung Hsiao E. Road, Taipei, Taiwan

Land (1) Third subsection, Fu-De section, 82/10000 Freehold NA
Hsin-Yi district, Taipei, Taiwan share of 2,275

Note:–
(1) This is the land on which the building at 25F-2 and B2-B4, No. 508, Section 5, Chung Hsiao E. Road was constructed on.

MAJOR PROPERTIES
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STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

SHAREHOLDINGS STATISTICS AS AT 24 FEBRUARY 2003

CLASS OF SHARES: S$0.05 ORDINARY SHARES VOTING RIGHTS: 1 VOTE PER SHARE

SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS NO. OF SHAREHOLDERS % NO. OF SHARES %

1 - 999 126 7.11 54,750 0.02
1,000 - 10,000 1,303 73.49 4,089,500 1.38
10,001 - 1,000,000 321 18.10 18,791,625 6.36
1,000,001 & ABOVE 23 1.30 272,747,375 92.24

TOTAL 1,773 100.00 295,683,250 100.00

TOP TWENTY SHAREHOLDERS NO. OF SHARES %

1. RON SIM CHYE HOCK 156,644,750 52.98
2. RAFFLES NOMINEES PTE LTD 29,725,500 10.05
3. CITIBANK NOMINEES S’PORE PTE LTD 16,903,250 5.72
4. CENTURY PRIVATE EQUITY HOLDINGS (S) PTE LTD 14,500,000 4.90
5. HONG LEONG FINANCE NOMINEES PTE LTD 14,325,750 4.84
6. KIM ENG ONG ASIA SECS PTE LTD 6,017,500 2.03
7. UNITED OVERSEAS BANK NOMINEES PTE LTD 5,227,750 1.77
8. TAY SIM KIM 3,862,000 1.31
9. HL BANK NOMINEES (S) PTE LTD 3,215,000 1.09
10. CITIBANK CONSUMER NOMINEES PTE LTD 3,133,000 1.06
11. TEO SWAY HEONG 2,255,250 0.76
12. THE ASIA LIFE ASSURANCE SOCIETY LTD - S’PORE LIFE FUND 2,147,000 0.73
13. OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LTD 1,831,500 0.62
14. CHEN CHUAN-I 1,563,583 0.53
15. DBS NOMINEES PTE LTD 1,532,500 0.52
16. FAMILY CO LTD 1,498,000 0.51
17. CHOU JEN CHUNG 1,250,000 0.42
18. LEOW LIAN SOON 1,250,000 0.42
19. TEO CHAY LEE 1,250,000 0.42
20. HSIEH WEN HSU 1,230,000 0.42

TOTAL 269,362,333 91.10

ORDINARY SHARES
DIRECT DEEMED

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTEREST INTEREST

RON SIM CHYE HOCK 186,644,750 2,255,250
ARISAIG PARTNERS (BVI) LTD, Arisaig
ASEAN fund and Arisaig Small Companies Fund 15,220,000 -
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at 65 Ubi Avenue 1, OSIM Headquarters, Singapore
408939 on 21 March 2003 at 9.30 am for the purpose of transacting the following business:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report and Audited Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2002 together with the Auditors’
Report thereon. (Resolution 1)

2. To declare a final dividend of 0.90 cents per ordinary share less income tax of 22.0% (net 0.702 cents) for the year ended 31 December
2002. (Final dividend paid last year: net 0.339 cents) (Resolution 2)

3. To re-appoint the following Directors, each of whom will cease to hold office pursuant to Article 92 of the Articles of Association of the
Company and who, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

(a) Mr Charlie Teo Chay Lee (Resolution 3)
(b) Mr Khor Peng Soon (Resolution 4)

Mr Khor will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, remain as a member of the Audit Committee and will be considered independent
for the purposes of Rule 704(8) of Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

4. To approve Directors’ Fees of S$100,000 for the year ended 31 December 2002. (Amount paid last year: S$100,000) (Resolution 5)

5. To re-appoint Messrs Ernst & Young as Auditors of the Company and to authorize the Directors to fix their remuneration.(Resolution 6)

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolutions which will be proposed as Ordinary Resolutions :-

6. THAT pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 and the listing rules of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited, authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company to issue ordinary shares and convertible securities in the
Company (whether by way of rights, bonus or otherwise) at any time and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes and to
such persons as the Directors may in their absolute discretion deem fit provided that the aggregate number of ordinary shares and
convertible securities to be issued pursuant to this Resolution does not exceed fifty per cent (50%) of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of this Resolution, of which the aggregate number of ordinary shares and convertible securities to be issued other
than on a pro rata basis to all shareholders of the Company does not exceed twenty per cent (20%) of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of this Resolution, and, unless revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting, such authority shall continue
in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or the date by which the next Annual General Meeting of
the Company is required by law to be held, whichever is the earlier. [see Explanatory Note (i)] (Resolution 7)
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

7. THAT pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50, the Directors be authorised and empowered to:

(a) offer and grant options in accordance with the provisions of the OSIM Share Option Scheme; and

(b) allot and issue shares in the capital of the Company to all the holders of options granted by the Company, whether granted during
the subsistence of this authority or otherwise, under the OSIM Share Option Scheme ("the Scheme") upon the exercise of such
options and in accordance with the terms and conditions of  the Scheme, provided always that the aggregate number of additional
ordinary shares to be allotted and issued pursuant to the Scheme shall not exceed fifteen per cent (15%) of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time. [see Explanatory Note (ii)] (Resolution 8)

8. To transact any other ordinary business which may properly be transacted at an Annual General Meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Peter Lee Hwai Kiat
Company Secretary

Singapore, 6 March 2003

Explanatory Notes:

i) The Ordinary Resolution 7 proposed in item 6 above, if passed, will empower the Directors from the date of the above Meeting until the
date of the next Annual General Meeting, to allot and issue shares and convertible securities in the Company. The number of shares and
convertible securities that the Directors may allot and issue under this Resolution would not exceed fifty per cent (50%) of the issued
capital of the Company at the time of the passing of this resolution. For issue of shares and convertible securities other than on a pro rata
basis to all shareholders, the aggregate number of shares and convertible securities to be issued shall not exceed twenty per cent (20%)
of the issued capital of the Company.

The percentage of issued capital is based on the Company’s issued capital after adjusting for:

(a) new shares arising from the conversion of convertible securities or employee share options on issue at the time this proposed
Ordinary Resolution is passed and

(b) any subsequent consolidation or subdivision of shares.

(ii) The Ordinary Resolution 8 proposed in item 7 above, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company, from the date of the above
Meeting until the next Annual General Meeting, to grant options under the OSIM Share Option Scheme, and to allot and issue shares in the
Company of up to a number not exceeding in total fifteen per cent (15%) of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time
pursuant to the exercise of the options under the OSIM Share Option Scheme.
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NOTES:

1. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint not more than two proxies to
attend and vote in his stead.  A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. The instrument appointing a proxy must be lodged at the registered office of the Company at 65 Ubi Avenue 1, OSIM Headquarters,
Singapore 408939 not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the Annual General Meeting.

Books Closure and Dividend Payment Dates
Duly completed transfers in respect of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company together with all relevant documents of title received by the
Company’s share registrar, B.A.C.S. Private Limited, 63 Cantonment Road, Singapore 089758 up to the close of business at 5.00 pm. on 8 April
2003 (the “Books Closure Date”) will be registered to determine members’ entitlements to the proposed dividends, subject to approval of members
to the proposed dividends at the Annual General Meeting to be convened on 21 March 2003.  Subject as aforesaid, members whose Securities
Accounts with The Central Depository (Pte) Limited are credited with ordinary shares in the capital of the Company as at 5.00 pm. on the Books
Closure Date will be entitled to the dividends.  The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books will be closed from 5.00pm on 8 April 2003 up
to and including 10 April 2003 for the purpose of determining members’ entitlements to the proposed dividends.  The proposed dividends, if so
approved by members, will be paid on 17 April 2003.
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I/We __________________________________(name) of____________________________________________________________________________(address)

Being a  member/members of OSIM INTERNATIONAL LTD (the “Company”), hereby appoint:-

Name Address NRIC/Passport Number Proportion of Shareholdings (%)

and/or (delete as appropriate)

Name Address NRIC/Passport Number Proportion of Shareholdings (%)

as my/our proxy/proxies to attend and to vote for me/us on my/our behalf and, if necessary, to demand a poll, at the Annual General Meeting
(‘AGM’) of the Company to be held at 65 Ubi Avenue 1, OSIM Headquarters, Singapore 408939 on Wednesday, 21 March 2003 at 9.30am and at
any adjournment thereof.

The proxy shall vote on the Resolutions set out in the Notice of the Meeting in accordance with my/our direction as indicated with an “X” in the
appropriate space below.  Where no such direction is given the proxy may vote as he will or abstain from voting on any matter at the Meeting or
any adjournment thereof.

ORDINARY BUSINESS FOR AGAINST

Resolution 1 Adoption of Directors’ Report and Audited Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2002,
together with the Auditors’ Report thereon.

Resolution 2 To declare a final dividend of 0.90 cents per ordinary share less income tax of 22.0% (net 0.702
cents) for the year ended 31 December 2002. (Final dividend paid last year: net 0.339 cents)

Resolution 3 Re-election of the following directors retiring pursuant to Article 92 of the Company’s Articles
of Association:-
(1)  Mr. Charlie Teo Chay Lee

Resolution 4 (2)  Mr. Khor Peng Soon

Resolution 5 Approval of Directors’ fees for year ended 31 December 2002

Resolution 6 Re-appointment of Auditors

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Resolution 7 Authority to issue shares

Resolution 8 Authority to offer and grant options and issue shares in accordance with the provisions of the
OSIM Share Option Scheme

Dated this  ___________ day of ____________________ 2003.
Total Number of Shares held

________________________________________
Signature(s) of Member(s) or Common Seal

IMPORTANT:  Please read notes overleaf

PROXY FORM

IMPORTANT:

1. For investors who have used their CPF monies to buy OSIM shares, this
Circular is forwarded to them at the request of their CPF Approved
Nominees and is sent solely FOR INFORMATION ONLY.

2. This Proxy Form is not valid for use by CPF Investors and shall be ineffective
for all intents and purposes if used or purported to be used by them.

OSIM INTERNATIONAL LTD
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)



NOTES:-

1. Please insert the space provided the total number of Shares held by you.  If you have Shares entered against your name in the Depository
Register (as defined in Section 130A of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore), you should insert that number of Shares.  If you
have Shares registered in your name in the Register of Members of the Company, you should insert that number of Shares.  If you have
Shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and Shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, you should
insert the aggregate number of Shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and registered in your name in the Register
of Members.  If no number is inserted, the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies shall be deemed to relate to all the Shares held by you.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at a meeting of the Company is entitled to appoint one or two proxies to attended and vote in his
stead.  A proxy need not be a member of the Company

3. Where a member appoints more than one proxies, he shall specify the proportion of his shareholding to be represented by each proxy.  If
no such proportion or number is specified the first named proxy may be treated as representing 100% of the shareholding and any
second named proxy as an alternate to the first named.

4. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at 65 Ubi Avenue 1, OSIM
Headquarters, Singapore 408939 not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the AGM.

5. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing in the Common Form approved by the Directors under the hand of the appointor or
his attorney duly authorised in writing.  Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by a corporation, it must be
executed either under its common seal or under the hand of its attorney duly authorized.

6. A corporation which is a member may also authorise by resolution of its directors or other governing body such person it thinks fit to act
as its representative at the AGM, in accordance with section 179 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore.

GENERAL

The company shall be entitled to reject the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies if it is incomplete, not properly completed or illegible or where
the true intentions of the appointer are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointer specified in the instrument appointing a proxy or
proxies.  In addition, in the case of members whose Shares are entered against their names in the Depository Register, the Company may reject
any instrument of proxy lodged if such member is not shown to have Shares entered against his name in the Depository Register as at 48 hours
before the time appointed for holding the AGM as certified by The Central Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company.



Ms Teo Sway Heong, 40

Non-executive Director

Ms Teo was previously one of the Group’s

Executive Directors and was in charge of

administration and human resources. She made

invaluable contributions to the Group’s growth

during its formative years. She was appointed to

the Board in March 2000.

Mr Khor Peng Soon, 53

Independent Non-executive Director

A Colombo Plan Scholar, Mr Khor is a Managing

Director of Temasek Holdings. He also sits on the

boards of several other companies in Singapore

and the region. He had previously held senior

management positions at Sembawang Aviation

and Sembawang Holdings. He had also worked

in Ernst & Young, Economic Development Board

and Telecoms Malaysia. He was appointed to the

Board in March 2000.

Mr Michael Kan Yuet Yun, PBM, 64

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr Kan, a Chartered Accountant, is also the

Chairman of the Group’s Audit Committee. He

also sits on the boards of several other companies

in Singapore and the region. Active in community

work, Mr Kan is the chairman of the management

committee of the Tanjong Pagar Community Club,

the Vice-Chairman of the Children’s Aid Society

and a member of Tanjong Pagar Citizens

Consultative Committee. Mr Kan was previously

the finance director of British-American Tobacco

Co (Singapore) Ltd. He was appointed to the

Board in June 2000.

Mr Ong Kian Min, 42

Independent Non-executive Director

A President and Police Force Scholar, Mr Ong is

an Advocate and Solicitor and a consultant with

legal firm Drew & Napier LLC. He is also the

Chairman of both the Group’s Remuneration

Committee and Nominating Committee. Mr Ong

is a Member of Parliament since January 1997

and serves as Vice Chairman of the Government

Parliamentary Committee (GPC) for Transport and

as a member of the GPC for Finance. He was

appointed to the Board in June 2000.
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